
AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

HUMBOLDT BAY HARBOR, RECREATION AND CONSERVATION DISTRICT 
 
DATE: October 14, 2021 
 
TIME: Closed Session – 5:00 P.M. 

Regular Session – 6:00 P.M. 
     
PLACE: Join Zoom Meeting 
 https://us02web.zoom.us/j/3432860852 

Meeting ID: 343 286 0852 
One tap mobile 
(669) 900-9128, 343 286 0852# US  

1. Call to Order Closed Session at 5:00 P.M. 

2. Public Comment 

Note:  This portion of the Agenda allows the public to speak to the Board on the closed 
session items. Each speaker is limited to speak for a period of three (3) minutes regarding 
each item on the Closed Session Agenda. The three (3) minute time limit may not be 
transferred to other speakers. The three (3) minute time limit for each speaker may be 
extended by the President of the Board of Commissioners or the Presiding Member of the 
Board of Commissioners. 

3. Move to Closed Session 

a) PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION pursuant to Government Code section 
54957(b)(1). Title: Executive Director – Larry Oetker  

b) PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT Title:  Director of Development 

c) CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS. Terms of lease of real property in 
Samoa Peninsula, Humboldt County, with Assessor’s Parcel Numbers, 401-031-055-000, 
401-031-070-000, 401-031-054-000, 401-031-061-000, 401-112-013-000, 401-031-071-
000, and 401-112-029-000, California pursuant to California Government Code § 54956.8. 
District negotiators: Larry Oetker, Executive Director and Ryan Plotz, District Counsel. 
Negotiating party: Town of Samoa, Green Diamond, Sniper Properties. Under negotiation: 
price and payment terms. 

d) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL--ANTICIPATED LITIGATION Significant exposure to 
litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) or (3) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9: one 
case.  Facts and circumstance include potential administrative enforcement action by 
County of Humboldt arising from cleanup of District’s property. 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/3432860852


Agenda for October 14, 2021 Regular Board Meeting 
 

 
2 

4. Call to Order Regular Session at 6:00 P.M. and Roll Call 

5. Pledge of Allegiance  

6. Report on Closed Session 
 

7. Public Comment 

Note:  This portion of the Agenda allows the public to speak to the Board on the various 
issues NOT itemized on this Agenda.  A member of the public may also request that a 
matter appearing on the Consent Calendar be pulled and discussed separately. Pursuant 
to the Brown Act, the Board may not take action on any item that does not appear on 
the Agenda. Each speaker is limited to speak for a period of three (3) minutes regarding 
each item on the Agenda. Each speaker is limited to speak for a period of three (3) 
minutes during the PUBLIC COMMENT portion of the Agenda regarding items of special 
interest to the public NOT appearing on the Agenda that are within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the Board of Commissioners. The three (3) minute time limit may not be 
transferred to other speakers. The three (3) minute time limit for each speaker may be 
extended by the President of the Board of Commissioners or the Presiding Member of the 
Board of Commissioners at the regular meeting of the District. Callers can “raise their 
hand” by pressing *9 and unmute themselves by pressing *6. 

8. Consent Calendar 

a) Receive District Financial Reports for August 2021 
b) Adopt Minutes for September 9, 2021 Special Board Meeting 
c) Cancel Regular Meeting on November 11, 2021 due to Veterans Day 
d) Approve Employment Agreement with Rob Holmlund as Director of Development  

9. Communications, Reports and Correspondence Received  

a) Executive Director’s Report 
b) Staff Reports 
c) District Counsel and District Treasurer Reports 
d) Commissioner and Committee Reports  
e) Correspondence Received  

 
10. Unfinished Business 

a) Consider Authorizing the Release of Request for Qualifications for Engineering 
Services and Preparation of CEQA/NEPA Environmental Documents for the 168-
Acre New Multipurpose Heavy Lift Dock and Upland Facilities to Support the 
Emerging Offshore Wind Industry 

Recommendation:  Staff recommends that the Board: Authorize Staff to release RFQs 
for engineering services and preparation of CEQA/NEPA environmental documents. 



Agenda for October 14, 2021 Regular Board Meeting 
 

 
3 

Summary:  In July 2021, Governor Newsom announced $11 million to the Port of 
Humboldt Bay to be utilized as matching funds for a $56 million Port Infrastructure 
Development (PDIP) Grant. On July 15, 2021, through Resolution 2021-11, the Board 
authorized the submission the grant and conditionally committed $76,935,000 
towards a $145 million new heavy lift terminal project. On August 10th, the Secretary 
of the Interior, President Biden’s Chair of Environmental Quality, and Congressman 
Huffman toured the proposed new terminal site and announced the intention that in 
2022, BOEM would lease 4.6 GW of offshore wind off California of which 1.6 GW 
would be 21 miles off Humboldt Bay and 3 GW off Morro Bay.   

11. New Business 

a) Accept Resignation From 1st District Commissioner Larry Doss and Provide 
Direction to Staff on Filling the Board Vacancy  

Recommendation:  Accept the Resignation of Commissioner Doss for filing and 
provide direction to staff as appropriate. 

Summary: On October 1, 2021 District staff received a letter of resignation from 1st 
District Commissioner Larry Doss due to a change of residency out of District one. 
Staff requests direction from the Board on how to fill the vacancy.  

b) Review the progress on Removing the Hazardous Waste at RMT II and the County 
Department of Health & Human Services Notification of Filing of an Administrative 
Enforcement Order Regarding Hazardous Material Storage and Reporting and 
Provide Direction as may be appropriate 

Recommendation: Receive a report from Staff and provide direction as may be 
appropriate. 

Summary:  On September 8, 2021, the District received a Notification of Filing of an 
Administrative Enforcement Order Regarding Hazardous Material Storage and Reporting 
the former pulp mill property (RMT II) on the Samoa Peninsula. The order stated that the 
“As of the Date of this correspondence, the Humboldt Bay Harbor District has not taken 
the required corrective actions to resolve the violations in the June 1, 2021 Notice of 
Violations”. The Harbor District takes these matters very seriously and continues to work 
to remove the hazardous material and to dispose them in certified facilities.    

c) Consider Adopting Resolution No. 2021-13, A Resolution to Authorize the 
Execution of a Grant Agreement and Accept Funds From the California Natural 
Resources Agency Department of Parks and Recreation Division of Boating and 
Waterways for the Surrendered and Abandoned Vessel Exchange Program 

Recommendation:  Staff recommends the Board: Adopt Resolution 2021-13. 

Summary:  There are currently thirty abandoned and/or derelict vessels located      at 
District boat storage facilities eligible under the SAVE Grant.  Eleven of those 
vessels are eligible for funding under this program. The Harbor District has 



Agenda for October 14, 2021 Regular Board Meeting 
 

 
4 

partnered with the City of Eureka and Humboldt County Sheriff's Office for many 
years to remove abandoned and surrendered vessels from local waterways to 
avoid environmental and navigational hazards as well as physical damage to marine 
facilities. The District has been awarded $52,000 in SAVE grant funds pending 
adoption of Resolution 2021-13. 

d) Consider Adopting Resolution No. 2021-16 A Resolution of the Board of 
Commissioners of the Humboldt Bay Harbor, Recreation, and Conservation 
District Making Findings Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953, as 
Amended by Assembly Bill 361, and Authorize the Continued Use of Virtual 
Meetings 

Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution No. 2021-16. 

Summary:  As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Governor issued Executive 
Order Nos. N-08-21, N-25-20 and N-29-20, which suspended certain provisions of 
the Ralph M. Brown Act to allow legislative bodies to conduct public meetings 
without strict compliance with the teleconferencing provisions of the Brown Act. 
Assembly Bill 361, which was signed into law in September of 2021, amended 
Government Code section 54953, to provide relief from the teleconferencing 
provisions of the Brown Act under certain circumstances provided the legislative 
body makes certain findings. 

12. Future Agenda Items 

a) October 18, 2021 Special Meeting to Consider Adopting a Resolution Expressing 
Continued Support for the Great Redwood Trail. 

b) Bar Pilot Recruitment 
c) Green Diamond Shared Services Agreement 
d) Wake Ordinance Amendment 
e) Anchoring Ordinance Amendment 
f) Brown Act Training 
g) Discussion on the Health of the Ocean 

13. Adjournment 



8/31/21 7/31/21
Account Balances
Checking 715,318$     31,181$      
Savings 15,572 90,104
Tariff 570,845 335,762
County Treasury 238,509 238,509
Cash on hand 1,371 1,468
    Total Cash 1,541,615    697,024     

Add: Accounts Receivable (less doubtful accounts) 1,309,344 788,689
Less: Accounts Payable (180,696)      (159,080)    
Available Cash and Receivables 2,670,263$   1,326,633$ 

Change in Cash Balance
Balance, Beginning of Month 697,024$     732,213$    
Monthly Deposits 1,121,956    235,637      
Monthly Payments (277,365)      (270,826)    
Balance, End of Month 1,541,615$   697,024$    

Monthly Expenses Summary
Significant/Unusual Expenses:
    Humboldt Bay Development Assoc lease payment 52,167$       
    Installment payment on delinquent property taxes 29,000$      
    Multipurpose dock conceptional design contract 38,681       
        Sub-total, Significance/Unusual Expenses 52,167         67,681       
General operating expenses and other misc. expense 225,198       203,145      
        Total Cash Payments 277,365$     270,826$    

Monthly Deposits Summary
Significant/Unusual Revenues:
    Multipurpose dock grant - Redwood Energy Authority 50,000$      
    RTI Cable landing payment 625,000$     
    FEMA Dredging grant receivable payment 232,762       
        Sub-total, Significant/Unusual Revenues 857,762       50,000       

General revenues 264,194       185,637      
        Total Cash Receipts 1,121,956$   235,637$    

HUMBOLDT BAY HARBOR, RECREATION, AND CONSERVATION DISTRICT
Monthly Cash Flow Analysis

For The Months Ended August 31, 2021 and July 31, 2021

1,541,615 

$277,365 

$1,121,956 

697,024 

$270,826 

$235,637 

 ‐  400,000  800,000  1,200,000  1,600,000

TOTAL CASH

TOTAL CASH PAYMENTS

TOTAL CASH RECEIPTS

Summary of Cash Activity

Prior Month Current Month

Agenda Item 8a.



Aug 21 Jul - Aug 21

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

Donations
46519 ꞏ Donations - Lighthouse 6.00 8.00

Total Donations 6.00 8.00

Dredging Revenue
41318 ꞏ Dredging Surcharge - T 17,015.80 32,723.95

Total Dredging Revenue 17,015.80 32,723.95

Fees
40108 ꞏ PERMITS-T 0.00 500.00
41818 ꞏ Late Charges/Interest - T 1,080.00 2,005.00
41819 ꞏ Late Charges/Interest - NT 1,018.27 1,636.06

Total Fees 2,098.27 4,141.06

Float Replacement Account
41418 ꞏ Float Replacement 5,726.91 11,015.47

Total Float Replacement Account 5,726.91 11,015.47

Grant Revenue
Harbor Grants

45208.1 ꞏ Harbor Grants, Gov't - T 0.00 27,355.55

Total Harbor Grants 0.00 27,355.55

Total Grant Revenue 0.00 27,355.55

Harbor Surcharge
40908 ꞏ Harbor Improvement Surcharge-T 33,735.22 39,358.22

Total Harbor Surcharge 33,735.22 39,358.22

Interest Revenue
43108 ꞏ Interest Income - T -0.85 166.31
43109 ꞏ Interest Income - NT 13,821.00 27,300.00

Total Interest Revenue 13,820.15 27,466.31

Other Revenue
45908 ꞏ Other Revenue - T 0.00 23,734.00
45909 ꞏ Other Revenue - NT 5,070.51 5,304.51

Total Other Revenue 5,070.51 29,038.51

Rent Income
40218 ꞏ Slip Rents - T 44,550.75 86,099.90
40318.1 ꞏ Transient Rentals - T 3,127.74 5,622.37
40519 ꞏ Equipment Rent - NT 140.00 280.00
40809 ꞏ Yard Rent - NT 931.20 1,862.40

41108 ꞏ Rents, Tidelands Leases - T 28,505.24 64,572.84
41309 ꞏ Storage - NT 3,504.83 7,186.16
41409 ꞏ Upland Rent - NT

41409.2 ꞏ Redwood Terminal 2 - NMTC 5,007.69 10,015.38
41409 ꞏ Upland Rent - NT - Other 1,461,948.50 1,537,947.98

Total 41409 ꞏ Upland Rent - NT 1,466,956.19 1,547,963.36

Total Rent Income 1,547,715.95 1,713,587.03

Sales
40119 ꞏ Concession Sales - NT 370.00 761.25

Total Sales 370.00 761.25

Tax Revenue
43509 ꞏ Property Tax Revenues 120,741.00 213,030.00

4:45 PM Humboldt Bay Harbor, Recreation & Conservation District
10/07/21 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis August 2021

Page 1

Agenda Item 8a.



Aug 21 Jul - Aug 21

Total Tax Revenue 120,741.00 213,030.00

Utility Surcharge
40409 ꞏ Utility Surcharge - NT 5,692.94 11,359.38
40418 ꞏ Utility Surcharge, Marina Dock 3,579.78 6,841.80

Total Utility Surcharge 9,272.72 18,201.18

52708.1 ꞏ Discount 0.00 29.69

Total Income 1,755,572.53 2,116,716.22

Gross Profit 1,755,572.53 2,116,716.22

Expense
Accounting/Auditing Services

52500 ꞏ Accounting Fees - T 1,815.00 4,275.00
52508 ꞏ Accounting Fees - NT 605.00 1,425.00

Total Accounting/Auditing Services 2,420.00 5,700.00

Advertising & Promotion
51000 ꞏ Advertising & Promotion - NT 0.00 58.80
51008 ꞏ Advertising & Promotion - T 0.00 -185.30

Total Advertising & Promotion 0.00 -126.50

Communications
51400 ꞏ Communications - NT 2,426.10 4,850.54
51408 ꞏ Communications - T 888.03 1,774.69

Total Communications 3,314.13 6,625.23

Conference & Meetings
51500 ꞏ Conferences & Meetings - NT 196.59 620.18
51508 ꞏ Conferences & Meetings - T 500.00 500.00

Total Conference & Meetings 696.59 1,120.18

Dredging Expense
55608 ꞏ Dredging Expense - T 1,146.87 2,166.87
56708 ꞏ Dredging - GT 2,248.00 2,248.00

Total Dredging Expense 3,394.87 4,414.87

Dues, Subscriptions & Licences
51600 ꞏ Dues & Subscriptions - NT 500.00 500.00

Total Dues, Subscriptions & Licences 500.00 500.00

Elections & Government Fees
51700 ꞏ Elections & Prop Tax Assess-NT 0.00 309.83

Total Elections & Government Fees 0.00 309.83

Engineering Services
52400 ꞏ Engineering Fees - NT 5,133.75 7,178.00
52408 ꞏ Engineering Fees - T 232.50 40,632.50

Total Engineering Services 5,366.25 47,810.50

Fuel
50400 ꞏ IMPUTED AUTO VALUE G/A 120.00 240.00
51200 ꞏ Automotive, Fuel- NT 398.10 803.34
51208 ꞏ Vessel Fuel 895.94 895.94
51218 ꞏ Automotive, Fuel - T 518.10 1,043.33

Total Fuel 1,932.14 2,982.61

Grant Expenses
Conservation Grant Expenses

54408.3 ꞏ Conservation Grant Exp 0.00 500.00

4:45 PM Humboldt Bay Harbor, Recreation & Conservation District
10/07/21 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis August 2021

Page 2



Aug 21 Jul - Aug 21

Total Conservation Grant Expenses 0.00 500.00

Harbor Grant Expenses
54408.1 ꞏ Harbor Grant Exp 30.00 60.00

Total Harbor Grant Expenses 30.00 60.00

Total Grant Expenses 30.00 560.00

Insurance
51800 ꞏ Insurance - NT 8,431.82 15,863.64
51808 ꞏ Insurance - T 1,269.01 2,465.64

Total Insurance 9,700.83 18,329.28

Interest Expense
55108 ꞏ Interest Expense - T 5,876.48 12,519.21
55109 ꞏ Interest Expense - NT 7,904.30 16,740.02

Total Interest Expense 13,780.78 29,259.23

Legal Services
52300 ꞏ Legal Fees - NT 1,253.25 2,727.38
52308 ꞏ Legal Fees - T 417.75 909.12

Total Legal Services 1,671.00 3,636.50

Maintenance - Equipment
51209 ꞏ Automotive, Repairs - NT 268.95 505.51
52710 ꞏ Repairs & Maint, Equip - NT 354.08 686.89
52718 ꞏ Repairs & Maint, Equip - T 154.32 -375.03

Total Maintenance - Equipment 777.35 817.37

Maintenance - Facilities
52708 ꞏ Repairs & Maint, Facilities - T 4,149.48 25,457.01
52719 ꞏ Repairs & Maint, Facilities - N 13,413.44 17,268.95

Total Maintenance - Facilities 17,562.92 42,725.96

Maintenance - IT
57009 ꞏ Maintenance, IT Equip - NT 1,241.40 2,725.97

Total Maintenance - IT 1,241.40 2,725.97

Maintenance Supplies
52008 ꞏ Maintenance Supplies - T 0.00 216.09
52010 ꞏ Maintenance Supplies - NT 1,391.50 3,800.79

Total Maintenance Supplies 1,391.50 4,016.88

Office Supplies
51900 ꞏ Office Supplies - NT 2,316.50 3,914.30

51908 ꞏ Office Supplies - T 904.05 1,258.99
51918 ꞏ OFFICE EXPENSE M/T 21.00 44.00

Total Office Supplies 3,241.55 5,217.29

Other Professional/Outside Serv
52109 ꞏ Outside Services, Other - NT 15.00 15.00
52110 ꞏ OUTSIDE SERVICES M/A 2,024.00 2,214.00
52118 ꞏ Outside Services, Other - T -4,940.50 -2,465.50

Total Other Professional/Outside Serv -2,901.50 -236.50

Personnel Expenses
Commissioners Fees

50200 ꞏ Commissioner's Salaries - NT 1,470.00 2,940.00
50208 ꞏ Commissioner's Salaries - T 630.00 1,260.00

Total Commissioners Fees 2,100.00 4,200.00

4:45 PM Humboldt Bay Harbor, Recreation & Conservation District
10/07/21 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis August 2021

Page 3



Aug 21 Jul - Aug 21

Payroll Burden
50500 ꞏ Payroll Benefits, Other - NT 32,515.28 65,167.32
50508 ꞏ Payroll Benefits, Other - T 10,745.81 21,083.81
6560 ꞏ Workers' Comp 3,217.77 6,303.29

Total Payroll Burden 46,478.86 92,554.42

Salaries/Wages
50100 ꞏ Salaries & Wages - NT 67,124.21 131,958.39

50108 ꞏ Salaries & Wages - T 0.00 169.84

Total Salaries/Wages 67,124.21 132,128.23

Total Personnel Expenses 115,703.07 228,882.65

Planning Services
52200 ꞏ Planning Fees - NT -3,647.75 -978.25
52208 ꞏ Planning Fees - T 0.00 0.00

Total Planning Services -3,647.75 -978.25

Rent Expense
54308 ꞏ Redwood Terminal 2 Lease Expens 22,186.00 39,717.18

Total Rent Expense 22,186.00 39,717.18

Small Tools
52800 ꞏ Small Tools - NT 0.00 56.61

Total Small Tools 0.00 56.61

Utilities
52909 ꞏ Utilities - NT 25,442.18 47,854.17
52918 ꞏ Utilities - T 4,014.44 8,391.91
53000 ꞏ Water, Sewer, & Refuse - NT 9,662.07 18,955.93
53008 ꞏ Water, Sewer, & Refuse - T 4,131.12 7,863.86

Total Utilities 43,249.81 83,065.87

Total Expense 241,610.94 527,132.76

Net Ordinary Income 1,513,961.59 1,589,583.46

Net Income 1,513,961.59 1,589,583.46

4:45 PM Humboldt Bay Harbor, Recreation & Conservation District
10/07/21 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis August 2021

Page 4



Aug 31, 21

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
10000 ꞏ PETTY CASH ON HAND 150.00
10100 ꞏ CHANGE FUND ON HAND 400.00
10111 ꞏ COIN MACHINE FUND 730.00
10200 ꞏ CASH IN BANK, CHECKING 10,209.04
10200.1 ꞏ Cash in BBVA, Checking 705,109.06
10400 ꞏ CASH IN COUNTY - FUND 2720 202,989.81
10500 ꞏ CASH IN COUNTY - FUND 3872 35,518.88
10600.1 ꞏ Cash in bank, Tariff BBVA 570,845.31
10700.1 ꞏ Cash in bank, Water BBVA 15,571.90
10901 ꞏ UNEXPENDED MARINA SURCHARGES 1,409,195.43
10903 ꞏ RESTRICTED CASH -1,409,195.43

Total Checking/Savings 1,541,524.00

Accounts Receivable
12000 ꞏ ACCTS RECEIVABLE 1,611,666.80

Total Accounts Receivable 1,611,666.80

Other Current Assets
12100 ꞏ ALLOW FOR BAD DEBTS -302,323.00
12200 ꞏ TAXES RECEIVBLE 213,030.00
12300 ꞏ INTEREST RECEIVBLE 30,336.00
12600 ꞏ Note Receivable - NMTC 5,849,375.00
12700 ꞏ PREPAID EXPENSES 111,941.36
12800 ꞏ LEASE RECEIVABLE 170.93
1499 ꞏ Undeposited Funds 91.25

Total Other Current Assets 5,902,621.54

Total Current Assets 9,055,812.34

Fixed Assets
CAPITAL ASSETS, NET

14910 ꞏ BEACH PROPERTY 208,149.00
15000 ꞏ AUTOMOTIVE EQUIPMENT 95,639.08
15100 ꞏ OFFICE EQUIPMENT 193,303.88
15200 ꞏ OPERATING EQUIPMENT 314,098.74
15500 ꞏ MARINA, RESTAURANT COMPLEX 34,100.00
15600 ꞏ MARINA 10,529,004.29
15700 ꞏ FL BOAT BLDG & REPAIR FACILITY 4,302,259.53
15800 ꞏ SHELTER COVE 2,386,247.10
15900 ꞏ DREDGING COSTS 215,226.78
16000 ꞏ KING SALMON 15,143.99
16100 ꞏ MARINA DREDGE,CONSTR IN PROGRES 1,214,232.34
16400 ꞏ REDWOOD DOCK PROPERTY 3,010,194.30
16500 ꞏ HOMELAND SECURITY EQUIPMENT 2,254,007.60
16600 ꞏ TABLE BLUFF LIGHTHOUSE 361.44
16700 ꞏ AQUAPONICS PILOT FACILITY 96,036.61
16800 ꞏ REDWOOD TERMINAL 2 2,613,169.43
16900 ꞏ Dredge 1,215,423.27
17000 ꞏ ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION -17,855,858.17

Total CAPITAL ASSETS, NET 10,840,739.21

14800 ꞏ SHIPWRECK PROPERTY 50,088.05
14900 ꞏ DOG RANCH PROPERTY 7,507.70

Total Fixed Assets 10,898,334.96

Other Assets
19000 ꞏ Deferred Outflows of PERS 320,904.00

Total Other Assets 320,904.00

TOTAL ASSETS 20,275,051.30

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

20000 ꞏ ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 66,696.03

Total Accounts Payable 66,696.03

Credit Cards
20112 ꞏ US Bank Visa 223.99

4:45 PM Humboldt Bay Harbor, Recreation & Conservation District
10/07/21 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of August 31, 2021

Page 1

Agenda Item 8a.



Aug 31, 21

Total Credit Cards 223.99

Other Current Liabilities
Payroll tax & Withholding Liab

2100 ꞏ PAYROLL LIABILITIES 3,161.02
21000 ꞏ WAGE GARNISHES -3,161.02
21300 ꞏ STATE UNEMPLOYMENT TAX 295.18
21600 ꞏ PERS CARE/MEDICAL INSURANCE 2,228.64

Total Payroll tax & Withholding Liab 2,523.82

20000.1 ꞏ ACCOUNTS PAYABLE YR END  ADJUST 114,000.00
20100 ꞏ LEASE PAYABLE TO HBDA -17,895.00
20200 ꞏ NOTES PAYABLE 496,947.27
20400 ꞏ ACCRUED WAGES PAYABLE 30,648.93
20500 ꞏ ACCRUED INTEREST 25,388.00
20600 ꞏ ACCRUED VACATION PAYABLE 35,976.00
20800 ꞏ DEPOSITS ON HAND

20801 ꞏ KEY DEPOSITS ON HAND 16,160.00
20802 ꞏ PLUG DEPOSITS ON HAND 1,020.00
20803 ꞏ SLIP DEPOSITS ON HAND 51,496.30
20804 ꞏ STORAGE DEPOSITS 3,741.65
20806 ꞏ LEASE SECURITY DEPOSIT 143,529.42
20807 ꞏ STORAGE DEPOSIT - REDWOOD DOCK 2,750.26
20808 ꞏ WAIT LIST DEPOSIT 3,000.00

Total 20800 ꞏ DEPOSITS ON HAND 221,697.63

22000 ꞏ DEFERRED LEASE INCOME 28,707.14
24000 ꞏ Ground Lease Deferred Income 3,906,000.00
24002 ꞏ Groundlease Current Def Income 60,092.31
28000 ꞏ DEFERRED INCOME 159,379.27
28500 ꞏ OTHER DEFERRED CREDITS 723,523.92

Total Other Current Liabilities 5,786,989.29

Total Current Liabilities 5,853,909.31

Long Term Liabilities
24001 ꞏ Gound Lease Amortization -329,245.34
24003 ꞏ Groundlease Current Offset -60,092.31
25200 ꞏ ENVIRONMENTAL REMEDIATION LIAB 10,162.77
25500 ꞏ OPEB Liability 220,710.00
25600 ꞏ Note Payable-Coast Seafoods Co. 654,335.11
25700 ꞏ BOND PAYABLE 2014 REFINANCING 2,079,805.48
25800 ꞏ BBVA Loan Payable 1,105,633.93
25900 ꞏ LESS CURRENT PORTION -496,947.27
27000 ꞏ Net Pension Liability 1,150,835.00
27200 ꞏ Deferred Inflows of PERS 153,290.00

Total Long Term Liabilities 4,488,487.37

Total Liabilities 10,342,396.68

Equity
3000 ꞏ OPENING BALANCE EQUITY 0.01
30500 ꞏ INVESTMENT IN FIXED ASSETS 9,181,656.59

30900 ꞏ RESTRICTED FUND BALANCE 1,409,195.00

31200 ꞏ GENERAL FUND BALANCE
31000 ꞏ FUND BALANCE - TIDELANDS TRUST -2,628,399.20
31200 ꞏ GENERAL FUND BALANCE - Other 380,618.76

Total 31200 ꞏ GENERAL FUND BALANCE -2,247,780.44

Net Income 1,589,583.46

Total Equity 9,932,654.62

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 20,275,051.30

4:45 PM Humboldt Bay Harbor, Recreation & Conservation District
10/07/21 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of August 31, 2021

Page 2



Type Date Num Name Memo Amount

10200.1 ꞏ Cash in BBVA, Checking
Liability Check 08/04/2021 E-pay Employment Development Department 499-0307-3 Q... -1,548.64
Liability Check 08/04/2021 E-pay Internal Revenue Service 94-2262845 ... -4,071.40
Liability Check 08/05/2021 QuickBooks Payroll Service Created by Pa... -21,211.17
Bill Pmt -Check 08/06/2021 Pacific Gas & Electric (8259-4) address QuickBooks g... 0.00
Bill Pmt -Check 08/06/2021 EFT CalPERS 457 Program 457Match 08/... -300.00
Liability Check 08/06/2021 EFT CalPERS 457 Program 450348 -1,350.00
Liability Check 08/06/2021 EFT PERS Unfunded Accrued Liab 2233447024 -4,612.55
Liability Check 08/06/2021 EFT State Disbursement Unit 02300000679... -233.53
Liability Check 08/06/2021 EFT State Disbursement Unit 02300000679... -170.19
Bill Pmt -Check 08/06/2021 61368 ACWA  JPIA 215 -26,886.19
Bill Pmt -Check 08/06/2021 61369 AT&T Phone 707 443-0801... -1,773.33
Bill Pmt -Check 08/06/2021 61370 B & B Portable Toilets -644.41
Bill Pmt -Check 08/06/2021 61371 California Redwood Co. Red Tank 05/... -748.06
Bill Pmt -Check 08/06/2021 61372 Campton Electric Supply -120.02
Bill Pmt -Check 08/06/2021 61373 Coast Seafood Co. August 2021 ... -13,000.00
Bill Pmt -Check 08/06/2021 61374 Coldwell Banker Commerical PacificPar... RMT2 - Moun... -395.18
Bill Pmt -Check 08/06/2021 61375 HSU Sponsored Programs Foundation Ports, Accoun... -17,859.43
Bill Pmt -Check 08/06/2021 61376 Humboldt Bay Municipal Water Dist. 9002.001 RMT2 -1,056.94
Bill Pmt -Check 08/06/2021 61377 Mad River Community Hospital A0073115 -253.75
Bill Pmt -Check 08/06/2021 61378 Mission Uniform & Linen 299313 -139.63
Bill Pmt -Check 08/06/2021 61379 North Coast Journal Office Assista... -58.80
Bill Pmt -Check 08/06/2021 61380 Nylex.net -401.97
Bill Pmt -Check 08/06/2021 61381 Pintermedia LLC -60.00
Bill Pmt -Check 08/06/2021 61382 Reincke Marine Fabrication (RMF) -882.00
Bill Pmt -Check 08/06/2021 61383 Security Lock & Alarm -39.26
Bill Pmt -Check 08/06/2021 61384 Southwest Answering Service -190.00
Bill Pmt -Check 08/06/2021 61385 Specialty Traffic Systems -87.11
Bill Pmt -Check 08/06/2021 61386 Sunbelt Rentals 772625 -1,127.67
Bill Pmt -Check 08/06/2021 61387 Thrifty Supply -63.37
Bill Pmt -Check 08/06/2021 61388 Tony Gosselin & Sons -87.00
Bill Pmt -Check 08/06/2021 61389 US Bank Corporate Payment System 42460445557... -3,725.40
Bill Pmt -Check 08/06/2021 61390 World Oil Enviromental Services 15055 -95.00
Bill Pmt -Check 08/06/2021 61391 US Postal Service PO Box 1030 ... -388.00
Bill Pmt -Check 08/12/2021 EFT Humboldt Bay Developement Association RMT2 Lease ... -52,167.00
Check 08/16/2021 Service Charge -110.30
Liability Check 08/17/2021 E-pay Employment Development Department 499-0307-3 Q... -1,643.15
Liability Check 08/17/2021 E-pay Internal Revenue Service 94-2262845 ... -4,522.38
Liability Check 08/19/2021 QuickBooks Payroll Service Created by Pa... -23,115.70
Liability Check 08/20/2021 61394 Operating Engineers Local No. 3 94-2262845 -348.88
Liability Check 08/20/2021 61395 Franchise Tax Board 558379330 -100.00
Liability Check 08/20/2021 EFT CalPERS 457 Program 450348 -1,350.00
Liability Check 08/20/2021 EFT PERS Unfunded Accrued Liab 2233447024 -4,612.55
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 EFT PERS Unfunded Accrued Liab 2233447024 -7,091.83
Liability Check 08/20/2021 EFT State Disbursement Unit 02300000679... -403.72
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 EFT CalPERS 457 Program 457Match 08/... -300.00
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 61396 101Netlink WIM -190.00
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 61397 Alber's Tractor & Ag Work PO #1669 & 1... -932.50
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 61398 Coastal Business Systems, Inc. WIM Copier ... -471.91
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 61399 Coastal Ecosystems Institute of No. Calif Sponsorphip ... -500.00
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 61400 David L. Moonie & Company -3,280.00
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 61401 Englund Marine Supply -446.54
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 61402 Eureka Oxygen Company -87.15
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 61403 Eureka Rubber Stamp -13.00
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 61404 Hiley, Mindy Notary Services -15.00
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 61405 Humboldt Waste Management Authority -158.00
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 61406 Mission Uniform & Linen 299313 -263.25
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 61407 Mitchell Law Firm, LLP -1,965.50
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 61408 Napa Auto Parts -594.16
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 61409 Pacific Gas & Electric (1906-4) Acct #067049... -4,269.37
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 61410 Pacific Gas & Electric (3494-4) 6598073494-4 -175.32
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 61411 Pierson Building Center 1297 -1,608.53
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 61412 Recology Eel River 061097997 -418.42
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 61413 Recology Humboldt County (061218064) 061218064 -695.72
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 61414 Recology Humboldt County (A0060000... A0060000265 -2,923.61
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 61415 Shafer's Ace Hardware 1586 -168.03
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 61416 Shelter Cove Fishing Preservation Inc SC Janitorial ... -2,083.33
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 61417 Shelter Cove Resort Improvement District SC -152.91
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 61418 SHN Consulting Engineers & Geologists -9,605.00

4:44 PM Humboldt Bay Harbor, Recreation & Conservation District
10/07/21 Account QuickReport
Accrual Basis As of August 31, 2021

Page 1

Agenda Item 8a.



Type Date Num Name Memo Amount

Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 61419 Staples Credit Plan 6035 5178 12... -207.46
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 61420 Valley Pacific Petroleum Services, Inc 114137 -1,050.47
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 61421 Verizon Wireless -337.65
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 61422 Verizon Wireless -76.53
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 61425 Advanced Security Systems RMT 2 -165.00
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 61426 Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. License & Per... -1,000.00
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 61427 AT&T Internet 831-000-8571... -933.88
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 61428 Bay Tank & Boiler Works -43.15
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 61429 Eureka Ready Mix -2,022.48
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 61430 Hillside Powersports Marine PO #1668 -353.20
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 61431 Humboldt Bay Solar Fund LLC HB0520 -17,422.12
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 61432 Humboldt Community Services District 3165 -519.56
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 61433 Interstate Battery -119.23
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 61434 Matthews Paints -152.95
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 61435 Mr. Rooter Plumbing VOID: Hydro ... 0.00
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 61436 Nylex.net PO #1666 -460.00
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 61437 Pintermedia LLC HBHD - Yearl... -35.00
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 61438 Planwest Partners, Inc. July 2021 Dist... -2,582.75
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 61439 SDRMA Workers' Com... -1,145.09
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 61440 Tenera Environmental Inc. 20236001 -5,150.00
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 61441 Mr. Rooter Plumbing Hydro Scrub -687.00
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2021 EFT PERS Unfunded Accrued Liab 2233447024 -700.00
Bill Pmt -Check 08/23/2021 EFT California State Lands Commission Outfall Pipe S... -2,525.00
Check 08/24/2021 EFT2 California State Lands Commission Overpayment,... -2,525.00
Bill Pmt -Check 08/30/2021 EFT Francotyp-Postalia 466106100 -300.00

Total 10200.1 ꞏ Cash in BBVA, Checking -270,876.28

TOTAL -270,876.28

4:44 PM Humboldt Bay Harbor, Recreation & Conservation District
10/07/21 Account QuickReport
Accrual Basis As of August 31, 2021

Page 2



DRAFT MINUTES 
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

HUMBOLDT BAY HARBOR, RECREATION AND CONSERVATION DISTRICT 
September 9, 2021 

The Humboldt Bay Harbor, Recreation and Conservation District met in special session on the above date, 
Closed Session met at 5:00 P.M., Special Session met at 7:00 P.M. both via video conference with a 
teleconference option. 

CLOSED SESSION – 5:00 P.M. 

PUBLIC COMMENT:  The following individuals addressed the Commission regarding subject matters 
on the closed session meeting agenda:  No one. 

a) PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION pursuant to Government Code section
54957(b)(1). Title: Executive Director – Larry Oetker

b) CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS. Terms of lease of real property in Samoa
Peninsula, Humboldt County, with Assessor’s Parcel Numbers, 401-031-055-000, 401-031-070-
000, 401-031-054-000, 401-031-061-000, 401-112-013-000, 401-031-071-000, and 401-112-
029-000, California pursuant to California Government Code § 54956.8. District negotiators:
Larry Oetker, Executive Director and Ryan Plotz, District Counsel. Negotiating party: Town of
Samoa, Green Diamond, Sniper Properties. Under negotiation: price and payment terms.

c) CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS. Terms of lease of real property in Samoa
Peninsula, Humboldt County, with Assessor’s Parcel Numbers, 401-112-021, 401-112-030-000
and 401-031-072 California pursuant to California Government Code § 54956.8. District
negotiators: Larry Oetker, Executive Director and Ryan Plotz, District Counsel. Negotiating
party: North Wind Management, LLC, Aria Cox. Under negotiation: price and payment terms.

SPECIAL SESSION – 7:01 P.M. 

ROLL CALL: 
PRESENT: DOSS 

HIGGINS 
KULLMANN 
MARKS 

ABSENT: DALE 
QUORUM: YES 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIENCE 

REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION:  No reportable action. 

Agenda Item 8b.



Draft Minutes for September 9, 2021 Special Board Meeting 
 

 
2 

PUBLIC COMMENT:  The following individuals addressed the Commission regarding subject matters 
not on the special session meeting agenda:  No one. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
a) Receive District Financial Reports for July 2021 
b) Adopt Minutes for August 12, 2021 Regular Board Meeting 
c) Authorize Board President to sign a letter regarding Proposed Ca. Air Resources Control Board 

Commercial Harborcraft Regulations/Sportfishing Boat Regulations 

COMMISSIONER HIGGINS MOVED TO ACCEPT CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS A-C.  
COMMISSIONER MARKS SECONDED. 
ROLL CALL VOTE WAS CALLED, MOTION CARRIED. 
Ayes: DOSS, HIGGINS, KULLMANN, MARKS 
Noes:  NONE 
Absent: DALE 
Abstain: NONE 

COMMUNICATIONS, REPORTS AND CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED 
a) Executive Director’s Report 

I. Executive Director presented Executive Director’s report. 
b) Staff Reports 

I. Staff presented on recent District activities. 
c) District Counsel and District Treasurer Reports 

I. None. 
d) Commissioner and Committee Reports  

I. Commissioners reported on recent activities and subcommittees. 
e) Correspondence Received  

I. None. 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None 

NEW BUSINESS 

a) Consider Approval of Amendment NO. 1 to the Tuluwat Island Wetland Mitigation 
Project Agreement with CalTRANS; Conditionally Award the Tuluwat Island Spartina 
Removal Contract to the Redwood Community Action Agency, and Conditionally 
Award Contract with Wiyot Tribe for Cultural Resources Monitoring 

I. District Staff presented the item. 
II. The Commission discussed the item. 
III. Chair Kullmann opened the item to public comment. Adam Canter, Tim Nelson and Rob 

Wall commented. 
IV. Chair Kullmann moved the discussion back to the Commission. 

COMMISSIONER HIGGINS MOVED TO APPROVE AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO THE TULUWAT 
ISLAND WETLAND MITIGATION PROJECT AGREEMENT WITH CALTRANS AND TO 
CONDITIONALLY AWARD THE TULUWAT ISLAND SPARTINA REMOVAL CONTRACT TO THE 



Draft Minutes for September 9, 2021 Special Board Meeting 
 

 
3 

REDWOOD COMMUNITY ACTION AGENCY AND CONDITIONALLY AWARD CONTRACT WITH 
WIYOT TRIBE FOR CULTURAL RESOURCES MONITORING. 
COMMISISONER MARKES SECONDED. 
ROLL CALL VOTE WAS CALLED, MOTION CARRIED. 
Ayes:   DOSS, HIGGINS, KULLMANN, MARKS 
Noes:   NONE 
Absent: DALE 
Abstain: NONE 

b) Consider Modifying Existing Easement through the Town of Samoa Properties 

I. Executive Director presented the item. 
II. The Commission discussed the item. 
III. Chair Kullmann opened the item to public comment. No one commented. 
IV. Chair Kullmann moved the discussion back to the Commission. 

COMMISSIONER MARKS MOVED TO MODIFY EXISTING EASEMENTS THROUGH THE TOWN 
OF SAMOA PROPERTIES. 
COMMISISONER HIGGINS SECONDED. 
ROLL CALL VOTE WAS CALLED, MOTION CARRIED. 
Ayes:   DOSS, HIGGINS, KULLMANN, MARKS 
Noes:   NONE 
Absent: DALE 
Abstain: NONE 

c) Consider Providing an Easement and Accepting Easements and Real Property from North Wind 
Management, LLC over Assessor Parcel Numbers 401-112-021, 401-112-030-000 and 401-031-
072 

I. Item was not presented. 
II. The Commission was given the opportunity to discuss the item. 
III. Chair Kullmann opened the item to public comment. No one commented. 
IV. Chair Kullmann moved the discussion back to the Commission. 

COMMISSIONER HIGGINS MOVED TO TABLE THE ITEM. 
COMMISSIONER MARKS SECONDED. 
ROLL CALL VOTE WAS CALLED, MOTION CARRIED. 
Ayes: DOSS, HIGGINS, KULLMANN, MARKS 
Noes: NONE 
Absent: DALE 
Abstain: NONE 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
a) Bar Pilot Recruitment 
b) Green Diamond Shared Services Agreement 
c) Coast Guard Utilities at Woodley Island 
d) Long Fin Smelt 



Draft Minutes for September 9, 2021 Special Board Meeting 
 

 
4 

e) Brown Act Training 
f) Exporting Coal out of Humboldt Bay 
g) Discussion on the Health of the Ocean 
h) Update on North Jetty Repairs 

ADJOURNMENT –  7:39 P.M. 
 

 
APPROVED BY:     RECORDED BY:    

 
 
 
 
 

________________________________ ________________________________ 
Patrick Higgins     Mindy Hiley 
Secretary of the Board of Commissioners Director of Administrative Services 

  



COMMISSIONERS 
1st Division 
  Larry Doss 
2nd Division 
  Greg Dale 
3rd Division 
  Stephen Kullmann 
4th Division 
  Richard Marks 
5th Division 
  Patrick Higgins 

 
Humboldt Bay  

Harbor, Recreation and Conservation District 
(707) 443-0801
P.O. Box 1030

Eureka, California 95502-1030 
 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
HARBOR DISTRICT MEETING 

October 14, 2021 

TO:  Honorable Board President and Harbor District Board Members  

FROM:  Larry Oetker, Executive Director  

DATE: October 11, 2021 

TITLE:  Cancel Regular Meeting on November 11, 2021 due to Veteran’s Day 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Cancel the Regular Meeting on November 11, 2021. 

SUMMARY:  The Business Matters Resolution No. 2021-01 adopted on February 11, 2021 states 
that Regular Meetings will be held on the second Thursday of each month except if the regular 
meeting date conflicts with a Holiday. Veteran’s Day falls on Thursday, November 11th this year. 

DISSCUSSION:  The Board should discuss scheduling a Special Meeting in November in lieu of 
the Regular Meeting. 

Agenda Item 8c.



Page 1 of 4 

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
With 

Robert Holmlund 

THIS AGREEMENT, is between the HUMBOLDT BAY HARBOR, RECREATION 
AND CONSERVATION DISTRICT, a public entity, located in Humboldt County, 
California, herein referred to as "District", and Robert Holmlund, herein referred to as 
"Employee". 

The parties recite that: 

A. District is a public entity with legal duties, powers and obligations set forth in
Sections 1 through 83 of Appendix 2 of the Harbors and Navigation Code of
the State of California.

B. Employee is willing to be employed by District, and District is willing to employ
Employee in the unclassified, at-will position Director of Development II on the
terms and conditions hereinafter set forth.

C. The position of Director of Development II is an unclassified service employee
as defined in Section 73 of Appendix 2 of the Harbors and Navigation Code.
Said position is an "At Will" position terminable at the will of either the
employer or the employee.

FOR THE REASONS SET FORTH ABOVE, AND IN CONSIDERATION OF 
THE MUTUAL COVENANTS AND PROMISES OF THE PARTIES HERETO, 
DISTRICT AND EMPLOYEE COVENANT AND AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Pursuant to this Agreement, Employee is employed as Director of
Development II for the Humboldt Bay Harbor, Recreation and Conservation
District effective January 3, 2022, and Employee hereby accepts and agrees
to such employment.

2. Employee shall perform and complete the services and tasks set forth in and
according to the time frame set forth in Exhibit "A", attached hereto and
incorporated by reference.

3. Employee shall at all times faithfully, industriously, and to the best of his
ability, experience, and talent perform all duties that may be required
pursuant to the expressed and implicit terms as set forth by the Executive
Director of the District. Such duties shall be rendered in Humboldt County,
California and at such other place or places as District shall in good faith
require or the interest, and needs or requests of District shall require or make
advisable.

4. Employee shall serve in the position of Director of Development at the will
and pleasure of the Executive Director of District.  The Executive Director of
the District or Employee may terminate this Agreement and terminate
Employee's employment with or without cause at any time.  In the event
Employee desires to terminate employment with the District as Director of
Development, it is expected (but not required) that Employee shall give to

Agenda Item 8d.



Page 2 of 4 

District a minimum of thirty (30) days written notice of said intention to 
terminate. Employee shall be compensated for accrued benefits to the date of 
termination in accordance with the provisions of the Personnel Policy. 

5. District shall pay Employee and Employee agrees to accept from District,
$115,000 per year in full payment of Employee's services for his position as
Director of Development.  When Nordic Aquafarms makes the 1st lease
payments to the Employer after receiving their Coastal Development Permit,
Employee shall receive a one-time $2,080 lump sum payment as a
performance bonus.  Employee shall receive a $5,000 annual salary increase
once the Coastal Development Permits are received for the new heavy lift
terminal at Redwood Marine Terminal I as outlined in the master plan which
was submitted as part of the District’s Port Infrastructure Development Grant
Application dated July 29,2021.

6. In addition to the foregoing, Employee shall receive ten (10) days
Management Leave plus all the employee benefits, except the Medical,
Dental and Vision benefits outlined in Section 2014, for full time employees as
now established by the District’s personnel policy, or different employee
benefits as may be modified or established by the District in the future.
However, nothing in this section or any other part of this Agreement shall be
interpreted as preventing or precluding the District from rescinding, amending
or otherwise modifying the existing Personnel Policy or from adopting
additional personnel policies or procedures concerning the employment,
including but not limited to modifications of the benefits of employment.
Employee expressly declines Employer provided Medical, Dental and Vision
benefits offered by Employer, and warrants and represents to Employer that
Employee maintains independent health insurance coverage.  Employee shall
maintain, at his own expense, and provide to Employer proof, that he has
health insurance coverage, which at a minimum, provides the levels of
coverage required by the Affordable Care Act.

7. Employee’s salary, job duties and performance shall be reviewed in January
of each year by the Executive Director of the District.  The annual
performance review may be used to adjust Employee’s salary based upon
future Employment Agreement Amendments which has been approved by the
Board of Commissioners.  However, nothing in this section shall be construed
as a promise or commitment by the District to increase compensation, or
concerning the amount of any such increase.

8. The effective date of appointment of Employee as Director of Development
shall be January 3, 2022, and unless terminated or renewed on or before
January 2, 2025, the agreement will remain in a month-to-month basis. In the
event the Employee is terminated without cause or the Employee’s contract is
not renewed, Employee will be given the opportunity to retire.

9. Employee shall devote his full time, attention, knowledge and skill solely and
exclusively as Director of Development, solely and exclusively to the business
and interest of the District.  The position is considered to be an exempt
position within the meaning of the California Labor Code for the purposes of
wage and hour provisions.  Employee's workweek is not necessarily limited to



Page 3 of 4 
 

40 hours per week.  Employee may be expected to work in excess of 40 
hours per week if required to perform his duties as Director of Development at 
the regular monthly salary with no provision for overtime pay. 

 
10. Employee is an unclassified employee as Director of Development.  The 

position of Director of Development is not entitled to participate as a member 
of the Operating Engineers Local Union No. 3, AFL-CIO, pursuant to the 
Union Contract with District and Director of Development is not included as a 
member of the bargaining unit represented by the Union. 

 
11.  Employee shall abide by all applicable provisions of District’s Personnel 

Policy as amended and with all other District policies and procedures 
currently in force or as may be implemented during the term of employment. 

 
12. This written Agreement contains the sole and entire agreement between the 

parties.  It supersedes any and all other agreements between the parties.  
The parties acknowledge and agree that neither of them has made any 
representation with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement or any 
representations including the execution and delivery hereof except such 
representations as are specifically set forth herein, and each party 
acknowledges that he/she or it has relied on his/her or its own judgment in 
entering into this Agreement.  The parties further acknowledge that any 
statements or representations that may have heretofore been made by either 
of them to the other are void and of no effect and that neither of them has 
relied thereon in connection with his or its dealings with the other. 

 
13. No waiver of modification of this Agreement or of any covenant, condition, or 

limitation herein contained shall be valid unless in writing and duly executed 
by the party to be charged therewith. 

 
14. This Agreement and performance hereunder and all suits and special 

proceedings hereunder shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the 
State of California.  In any action, special proceeding, or other proceedings 
that may be brought arising out of, in connection with, or by reason of this 
Agreement, the laws of the State of California shall be applicable and shall 
govern to the exclusion of the law of any other form.  Any legal proceedings 
or actions arising out of this agreement shall be venued in Humboldt County, 
California. 

 
Executed at Humboldt County, California, on the date first written below. 
 
HUMBOLDT BAY HARBOR, RECREATION AND CONSERVATION DISTRICT 
 
            
Larry Oetker, Executive Director  Date 
 
 
EMPLOYEE 
  
           
Robert Holmlund    Date 

10/11/21



Page 4 of 4 
 

      
 
Attachment A.   Director of Development Position Description dated August 26, 2021  



  

Page 1 of 3 
 

Director of Development I and II 

Position Description (8-26-2021) 

 

DEFINITION 

 

Under the direction of the Executive Director, the Director of Development plans, organizes, 
and manages the short and long term development activities for the District, as well as, the 
permitting of other development within Humboldt Bay as outlined in the Humboldt Bay 
Management Plan (HBMP) and District Ordinances.   The position is responsible for 
coordinating all activities associated with planning, funding, permitting, developing, and 
marketing a new multipurpose terminal and coordinating with other private terminal operators 
to facilitate their development objectives which are in-line with the HBMP.   
 
CLASS CHARACTERISTICS 

 

Director of Development I: This is the mid management class in the Director of Development  I 
and II series. This class is distinguished from the Director of Development II by the 
performance of the mid management tasks and duties assigned to positions within the series 
while gaining knowledge and abilities. As experience is gained, assignments become more 
varied and are performed with greater independence. This position is alternately staffed with the 
Director of Development II and incumbents may advance to the higher level upon meeting the 
promotional requirements established for the position. 
 
Director of Development II: This is the upper management class in the Director of 
Development I and II series.  This class is distinguished from the Director of Development I by 
the independent performance of the full range of more complex duties and the level of advanced 
expertise that is gained through years of experience.  This class requires only limited direction 
as new or unusual situations arise. This class is flexibly staffed and normally filled by 
promotion from the Director of Development I, or when filled from the outside, requires 
satisfactory demonstration of ability to meet the requirements established for promotion to the 
position. 
 
EXAMPLES OF DUTIES – duties may include, but are not limited to the following: 

 
• Implementation of the policies contained in the Humboldt Bay Management Plan. 
• Implementing the Harbor District’s development permit processing, CEQA compliance 

and permit monitoring program. 
• Coordinating planning efforts and permit requirements of the Harbor District and other 

agencies. 
• Plan, execute, and complete all assigned development, construction and special projects: 

• Establish project schedule. 
• Define scope and allocate resources for project performance and completion. 
• Lead planning, design, and implementation with the project team. 
• Develop project budget and maintain job cost reports. 



Page 2 of 3 

• Ensure timely and accurate submission of invoices for payments and draw
requests including any necessary material and labor lien release.

• Develop and implement marketing strategy(s).
• Develop and implement project financing plan(s).
• Identify and apply for grants to achieve District objectives.
• Identify critical path for project completion and success.

• Prepare contracts, Request for Proposals, and handle sensitive legal, employment, real 
estate, and other documents to support the activities of the District.

• Develop budgets and track short-term and long-term expenses, equipment, resource needs, 
and development budgets of the District projects.

• Organizes and conducts staff orientation, performance evaluations, counseling, discipline, 
professional development and training of employees.

• Attend, convene and lead meetings, conferences, activities, and engagements with 
stakeholder groups, partner agencies, and other organizations.

• Coordinate with grant partners, lenders and technical assistance consultants.
• Supervise internal team members and collaborate with District Planner, District Engineer, 

consultants to facilitate an overall project team.
• Provides project management for the most complex planning studies; analyzes site design, 

environmental constraints, circulation, land use compatibility, utilities and other services 
Ensures project compliance with federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations.

• Confers with engineers, developers, architects and a variety of agencies and the general 
public regarding District development projects.

• Represents the District to outside agencies; explains and interprets District programs, 
policies, and activities; negotiates and resolves significant and controversial issues.

• Conducts a variety of organizational and operational studies and investigations; 
recommends modifications to programs, policies and procedures as appropriate.

• Negotiates contracts and agreements; coordinates with legal counsel to determine District 
needs and requirements for contractual services.

• Participates on and makes presentations to the Harbor District Board and a variety of 
other governmental organization, professional groups, and community organizations.

• Stays abreast of new trends and innovations in the field of Port and Harbor Development.
• Other duties as assigned by the Executive Director.

REQUIREMENTS 

• Must possess a valid California Driver License.
• Must be proficient in the use of general office equipment, computer programs such as

Microsoft Word, Excel, Power Point, Outlook and internet applications.
• Must possess customer service skills with knowledge in customer service management,

methods, and techniques, and treat all individuals with courtesy, dignity, and respect.
• Ability to communicate well both verbally and in writing with internal and external staff,

consultants, agencies, customers, and the public.



Page 3 of 3 

• Possess strong organizational and problem-solving skills.
• Possess a valid California Boater Card within six months of employment.
• Possess valid basic First Aid and CPR certification within six months of employment.
• Obtain a Transportation Worker Identification Credential within six months of employment.
• Ability and skills required to tie-up and handle boats.
• Must be willing to work nights, weekends, standby, on-call, and overtime as necessary.
• Pass a pre-employment physical and random drug testing.

PHYSICAL REQUIREMENTS 

Must be able to perform the physical aspects of the job, including sitting for periods of time, 
operating standard office equipment, including a computer; working on and around boat and 
watercraft, traversing uneven terrain, climbing ladders and stairs, operating a motor vehicle; 
lifting or carrying up to 50 lbs.; working outside in varying weather and water conditions. 

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING 

Any combination of training and experience that would provide the required knowledge, skills, 
and abilities is qualifying. A typical way to obtain the required qualifications would be: 

Director of Development I: 
• A Bachelor’s degree and at least three (3) years experience in water management,

oceanography, conservation, fisheries, wildlife, biology, botany, recreation, economic
development, planning, public administration, or a related field is desirable.  A Master’s
Degree in a related field may qualify for one (1) years work experience; or

• At least five (5) years experience independently performing the duties of a development
manager or similar position may qualify the applicant for the educational experience.

Director of Development II:  Satisfactory demonstration of at least five (5) years experience 
independently performing the duties of Director of Development I, and the ability to perform 
the specific tasks established for promotion to the position. 



COMMISSIONERS 
1st Division 
  Larry Doss 
2nd Division 
  Greg Dale 
3rd Division 
  Stephen Kullmann 
4th Division 
  Richard Marks 
5th Division 
  Patrick Higgins 

 
Humboldt Bay  

Harbor, Recreation and Conservation District 
(707) 443-0801
P.O. Box 1030

Eureka, California 95502-1030 
 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
HARBOR DISTRICT MEETING 

October 8, 2021 

TO:  Honorable Board President and Harbor District Board Members 

FROM:  Larry Oetker, Executive Director  

DATE: October 14, 2021 

TITLE:   Consider Authorizing the Release of Request for Qualifications for Engineering Services and 
Preparation of CEQA/NEPA Environmental Documents for the 168-Acre New Multipurpose 
Heavy Lift Dock and Upland Facilities to Support the Emerging Offshore Wind Industry 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board: Authorize Staff to release RFQs for 
engineering services and preparation of CEQA/NEPA environmental documents. 

SUMMARY:   In July 2021, Governor Newsom announced $11 million to the Port of Humboldt Bay to 
be utilized as matching funds for a $56 million Port Infrastructure Development (PDIP) Grant. On July 
15, 2021, through Resolution 2021-11, the Board authorized the submission the grant and 
conditionally committed $76,935,000 towards a $145 million new heavy lift terminal project. On 
August 10th, the Secretary of the Interior, President Biden’s Chair of Environmental Quality, and 
Congressman Huffman toured the proposed new terminal site and announced the intention that in 
2022, BOEM would lease 4.6 GW of offshore wind off California of which 1.6 GW would be 21 miles 
off Humboldt Bay and 3 GW off Morro Bay.   

DISCUSSION:    Staff and the Board’s offshore wind subcommittee continue to meet regularly and 
there is a great deal of interest from the private sector in the District continuing to accelerate 
engineering, environmental review and permitting in advance of BOEM’s offshore wind leases in 
2022. The environmental review and permitting of the facility are expected to take approximately 
two to three years. If the Board authorized the release of the RFQ’s, the noticing and selection 
process is expected to go through January 2022. Preliminary discussion with the California Energy 
Commission regarding the contracts for the $11 million grant funds, and well as, the award 
announcement for the $56 Million PDIP grant is also anticipated for January 2020. The award of the 
contracts for the engineering and CEQ/NEPA documents would be after the execution of the 
contracts for $11 million with the State and after the PDIP grant announcement. 

Resolution 2021-11 includes a commitment of $375,000 and $690,000 of in-kind staff time to the 
project. The $690,000 in-kind represents $138,000 per year for 5 years of staff time. The new 
terminal master plan, design drawing and cost estimates prepared by Moffit & Nichol are attached.  

Page 1 of 2 

Agenda Item 10a.



   

Page 2 of 2 
 

The Planning Studies, field investigations, engineering design, permitting /CEQA/NEPA, and 
environmental mitigation are projected to cost approximately $6.8 million. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A. Design Drawings 
B. Cost Estimates 
C. Resolution 2020-11 



HUMBOLDT BAY OFFSHORE WIND AND 
HEAVY LIFT MARINE TERMINAL 

EUREKA, CALIFORNIA 

Attachment 5 

Concept Design Drawings 

Submitted by: 

Agenda Item 10a.
Attachment A



©
 2021 M

icrosoft Corporation ©
 2021 M

axar ©
CNES (2021) Distribution Airbus DS 

101010

11

10

3

00
1

3

22

23
2

2

4

10

10

1112
1311
11

11

11

10

9

1010

10

10

10

10

9

10

11

32

11

11

10

3

3
1

2

25

30

35

2324
26272829
31323334

36
37

3838

38

15
20
25
30

35

131416171819212223242627282931323334

36

37

38

39

25

30

35

21222324
26272829
31323334
36
37

38

39
39
39

25

30

35

26272829
3132

33
34

36

37

38

39

30

35

2829
313233

34

36
37

38

39
39

3939

39

APPROXIMATE LIMITS
OF EXISTING PIER

HUMBOLDT BAY OFFSHORE WIND AND HEAVY LIFT MARINE TERMINAL

Fi
le

: Q
:\S

EA
\2

10
80

7\
20

 C
AD

D
\_

Ac
tiv

e\
_E

xh
ib

its
\2

10
80

7S
K-

01
; P

lo
tte

d:
 7/

26
/2

02
1 

3:
46

 P
M b
y 

M
O

YA
 IG

LE
SI

AS
, C

R
IS

TI
AN; S

av
ed

: 7
/1

9/
20

21
 1

2:
55

 P
M b
y 

C
M

O
YA

IG
LE

SI
AS

CONCEPTUAL DRAWING
NOT TO BE USED FOR CONSTRUCTION2021-07-26 EXISTING CONDITIONS

SK-01

NOTES
1. BATHYMETRIC SURVEY DATA SOURCE: USACE HYDRO SURVEY,

HUMBOLDT BAY CHANNEL, SAMOA - CONDITION SURVEY, 22 APRIL
2021. ELEVATIONS ARE REFERENCED TO MEAN LOWER LOW
WATER (MLLW).

2. TOPOGRAPHY DATA SOURCE: NOAA DATA ACCESS VIEWER, 2019
LIDAR EUREKA, CA. ELEVATIONS ARE REFERENCED TO NAVD88.

3. DATA UNAVAILABLE FOR AREAS WITH NO BATHYMETRIC OR
TOPOGRAPHIC DATA SHOWN.

4. ALL UNITS ARE FEET.

N

100' 0' 100' 200'

SCALE: 1''=100'



©
 2021 M

icrosoft Corporation ©
 2021 M

axar ©
CNES (2021) Distribution Airbus DS 

25

30

35

2324
26272829
31323334

36
37

3838

38

15
20
25
30

35

131416171819212223242627282931323334

36

37

38

39

25

30

35

21222324
26272829
31323334
36
37

38

39
39
39

25

30

35

26272829
3132

33
34

36

37

38

39

30

35

2829
313233

34

36
37

38

39
39

3939

39

75'-0"

FEDERAL CHANNEL LIMIT

(5) 20'x20' MOORING DOLPHINS

100'-0"

PILE SUPPORTED HEAVY
LIFT WHARF (5000 PSF)

DREDGE TO -38' MLLW

UPLAND AREA (3000 PSF)
±2 ACRES EL. ±17.1' NAVD88

RIP RAP SLOPE
UNDER WHARF

REPRESENTATIVE
SEMI-SUBMERSIBLE

FLOATING FOUNDATION

DREDGE SIDE SLOPE (±2:1)
WITH RIP RAP

DREDGE SIDE SLOPE (±3:1)
WITH RIP RAP

15
0'

-0
"

75'-0"

FLOATING FOUNDATION
MOORING STRUCTURE

45'-0"

CATWALK TO MOORING
STRUCTURE (2) 75' SEGMENTS

100'-0"

CATWALK SUPPORT
PLATFORM

REPRESENTATIVE
HEAVY LIFT CRANE
WITH BALLAST WAGON
AND CRANE ENVELOP

WIND TURBINE GENERATOR
COMPONENT STORAGE
FOR ASSEMBLY

BLADES

HUMBOLDT BAY OFFSHORE WIND AND HEAVY LIFT MARINE TERMINAL

Fi
le

: Q
:\S

EA
\2

10
80

7\
20

 C
AD

D
\_

Ac
tiv

e\
_E

xh
ib

its
\2

10
80

7S
K-

02
; P

lo
tte

d:
 7/

26
/2

02
1 

3:
48

 P
M b
y 

M
O

YA
 IG

LE
SI

AS
, C

R
IS

TI
AN; S

av
ed

: 7
/2

0/
20

21
 1

2:
22

 P
M b
y 

C
M

O
YA

IG
LE

SI
AS

CONCEPTUAL DRAWING
NOT TO BE USED FOR CONSTRUCTION2021-07-26

PHASE 2A
OPERATIONAL LAYOUT
SK-02

N

100' 0' 100' 200'

SCALE: 1''=100'

LAYOUT NOTES

1. LAYOUT SHOWN IS FOR PHASE 2A OF TERMINAL BUILD OUT.
THIS LEVEL OF BUILD OUT IS MEANT TO SUPPORT A SMALL
SCALE COMMERCIAL PROJECT.

2. PHASE 2A REPRESENTS THE MINIMUM QUAY LENGTH AND
FOOTPRINT AND UPLANDS LAYDOWN AREA REQUIRED TO
SUPPORT THE IMPORT AND INSTALLATION OF WTG (WIND
TURBINE GENERATOR) COMPONENTS (TOWER, NACELLES,
AND BLADES) ONTO A FLOATING FOUNDATION.

3. PHASE 2A BUILD OUT REQUIRES SHARING OF BERTH
LENGTH FOR ALL ACTIVITIES:

3.1. DELIVERY OF WTG COMPONENTS
3.2. INSTALLATION OF WTG COMPONENTS ONTO FLOATING

FOUNDATION
3.3. RIGGING OG FOUNDATION FOR TOW OUT TO

INSTALLATION SITE
4. ADDITIONAL BUILD OUT FOR LARGE SCALE INSTALLATIONS

(PHASE 2B, 3 & 4) WILL LIKELY BE REQUIRED.
5. THIS LAYOUT SHOULD BE CONSIDERED PRELIMINARY AND IS

BASED ON AVAILABLE INFORMATION.
6. WIND TURBINE COMPONENTS SHOWN ARE

REPRESENTATIVE IN SIZE THAT WILL BE STAGED ON THE
THE TERMINAL.

7. LENGTH OF QUAY ALLOWS FOR WTG COMPONENT DELIVERY
BY EITHER BULK CARRIER VESSEL OR BARGE.

8. FOUNDATION SIZE HAS BEEN SCALED FROM EXISTING
SEMI-SUBMERSIBLE INSTALLATIONS TO ACCOMMODATE
12-MW TURBINE UNIT.

PHASE 2A TERMINAL OPERATIONS

A. WTG COMPONENTS (TOWERS, TURBINES, AND BLADES) ARE
DELIVERED TO THE TERMINAL VIA BARGE OR VESSEL AND
UNLOADED BY A LAND-BASED CRANE AND STAGED ON THE
UPLANDS.

A.A. NACELLES ARE STORED IN HEAVY LIFT UPLANDS AREA
A.B. BLADES AND TOWER SECTIONS STORED OUTSIDE OF

HEAVY LIFT AREA ON AVAILABLE UPLANDS AREAS
B. FLOATING FOUNDATION IS TOWED TO BERTH BY TUGS.
C. WTG COMPONENTS ARE INSTALLED ONTO FOUNDATION VIA

LAND BASED CRANE.
D. COMPLETE FLOATING TURBINE ASSEMBLY IS CONNECTED

TO OCEAN GOING TUGS AND TOWED TO INSTALLATION SITE.

DRAWING NOTES

1. TERMINAL GRADE AT THE BERTH IS +17.1'± NAVD88 IN
ORDER TO BE ABOVE CURRENT FEMA 100 YEAR FLOOD
ELEVATION AND FUTURE SEA LEVEL RISE.

2. ALL BOUNDARIES AND AREAS ARE APPROXIMATE.
3. BATHYMETRIC INFORMATION SHOWN IN FT MLLW.
4. PHASE 2A ALSO INCLUDES EXISTING WHARF DEMOLITION

AND DREDGING.



A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

I

J

K

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

8 9 10 11 12 13 14

6 SPA. @ 15'-0" = 90'-0"

12
 S

PA
. @

 1
1'

-9
" =

 1
41

'-0
"

(2) 75'x4' ALUMINUM
GANGWAY

L

M

6 SPA. @ 15'-0" = 90'-0"

3 
SP

A.
 @

 1
1'

-9
"

= 
35

'-3
"

100'x45' FOUNDATION
MOORING STRUCTURE

100'x150' WHARF

250'-0"

HUMBOLDT BAY OFFSHORE WIND AND HEAVY LIFT MARINE TERMINAL

Fi
le

: Q
:\S

EA
\2

10
80

7\
20

 C
AD

D
\_

Ac
tiv

e\
_E

xh
ib

its
\2

10
80

7S
K-

03
; P

lo
tte

d:
 7/

26
/2

02
1 

3:
48

 P
M b
y 

M
O

YA
 IG

LE
SI

AS
, C

R
IS

TI
AN; S

av
ed

: 7
/1

9/
20

21
 1

:2
9 

PM b
y 

C
M

O
YA

IG
LE

SI
AS

CONCEPTUAL DRAWING
NOT TO BE USED FOR CONSTRUCTION2021-07-26

N

PHASE 2A
WHARF PILE PLAN
SK-03

20' 0' 20' 40'

SCALE: 1''=20'

A1
SK-06

KEY:

30" DIA. CONCRETE-FILLED STEEL PIPE PILE

18" DIA. CONCRETE-FILLED STEEL PIPE PILE 
FOR CATWALK SUPPORT

NOTE:

1. PILE PLAN FOR PHASE 2A BUILD-OUT SHOWN.



©
 2021 M

icrosoft Corporation ©
 2021 M

axar ©
CNES (2021) Distribution Airbus DS 

25

30

35

2324
26272829
31323334

36
37

3838

38

15
20
25
30

35

131416171819212223242627282931323334

36

37

38

39

25

30

35

21222324
26272829
31323334
36
37

38

39
39
39

25

30

35

26272829
3132

33
34

36

37

38

39

30

35

2829
313233

34

36
37

38

39
39

3939

39

DREDGE AREA TO -21' MLLW

FLOATING ASSET

50'-0" 100'-0" 75'-0"15
0'

-0
"

75'-0"

FEDERAL CHANNEL LIMIT

(5) 20'x20' MOORING DOLPHINS

450'-0"

PILE SUPPORTED HEAVY
LIFT WHARF (5000 PSF)

REPRESENTATIVE
DELIVERY VESSEL

DREDGE TO -38' MLLW

UPLAND AREA (3000 PSF)
±18 ACRES EL. ±17.1' NAVD88

RIP RAP SLOPE
UNDER WHARF

WIND TURBINE GENERATOR
COMPONENT STORAGE
FOR ASSEMBLY

REPRESENTATIVE
SEMI-SUBMERSIBLE

FLOATING FOUNDATION

DREDGE SIDE SLOPE (±2:1)
WITH RIP RAP

DREDGE SIDE SLOPE (±3:1)

REPRESENTATIVE
SEMI-SUBMERSIBLE

FLOATING FOUNDATION

HUMBOLDT BAY OFFSHORE WIND AND HEAVY LIFT MARINE TERMINAL

Fi
le

: Q
:\S

EA
\2

10
80

7\
20

 C
AD

D
\_

Ac
tiv

e\
_E

xh
ib

its
\2

10
80

7S
K-

04
; P

lo
tte

d:
 7/

26
/2

02
1 

3:
48

 P
M b
y 

M
O

YA
 IG

LE
SI

AS
, C

R
IS

TI
AN; S

av
ed

: 7
/2

2/
20

21
 9

:3
7 

AM b
y 

C
M

O
YA

IG
LE

SI
AS

CONCEPTUAL DRAWING
NOT TO BE USED FOR CONSTRUCTION2021-07-26

PHASE 2B
OPERATIONAL LAYOUT
SK-04

N

100' 0' 100' 200'

SCALE: 1''=100'

LAYOUT NOTES

1. LAYOUT SHOWN IS FOR PHASE 2B OF TERMINAL BUILD OUT.
THIS LEVEL OF BUILD OUT IS MEANT TO SUPPORT A SMALL
SCALE COMMERCIAL PROJECT.

2. PHASE 2B REPRESENTS THE MINIMUM QUAY LENGTH AND
INFILL/UPLAND LAYDOWN AREA REQUIRED TO FABRICATE
AND LOADOUT FLOATING FOUNDATIONS AND INSTALL OF
WTG COMPONENTS ONTO THE FOUNDATION.

3. PHASE 2B BUILD OUT REQUIRES SHARING OF BERTH
LENGTH FOR ALL ACTIVITIES:

3.1. DELIVERY OF WTG COMPONENTS
3.2. LOAD OUT OF FABRICATED FOUNDATION ONTO

FLOATING ASSET
3.3. INSTALLATION OF WTG COMPONENTS ONTO FLOATING

FOUNDATION
3.4. RIGGING OF FOUNDATION FOR TOW OUT TO

INSTALLATION SITE
4. ADDITIONAL BUILD OUT FOR LARGE COMMERCIAL SCALE

INSTALLATIONS (PHASE 3 & 4) WILL LIKELY BE REQUIRED.
5. THIS LAYOUT SHOULD BE CONSIDERED PRELIMINARY AND IS

BASED ON AVAILABLE INFORMATION.
6. WIND TURBINE COMPONENTS SHOWN ARE

REPRESENTATIVE IN SIZE THAT WILL BE STAGED ON THE
THE TERMINAL.

7. LENGTH OF QUAY ALLOWS FOR WTG COMPONENT DELIVERY
BY EITHER BULK CARRIER VESSEL OR BARGE.

8. FABRICATION PROCESS AND LAYOUT IS NOT SHOWN. THIS
WILL BE SPECIFIC TO TYPE AND MATERIAL OF FOUNDATION
AND LOGISTICS PLAN OF THE TERMINAL USER.

9. FLOATING ASSET IS ASSUMED TO BE A SEMI-SUBMERSIBLE
BARGE. SIZING IS TO ACCOMMODATE ASSUMED
FOUNDATION SIZE.

10. FOUNDATION SIZE HAS BEEN SCALED FROM EXISTING
SEMI-SUBMERSIBLE INSTALLATIONS TO ACCOMMODATE
12-MW TURBINE UNIT.

PHASE 2B TERMINAL OPERATIONS

A. WTG COMPONENTS (TOWERS, TURBINES, AND BLADES) ARE
DELIVERED TO THE TERMINAL VIA BARGE OR VESSEL AND
UNLOADED BY A LAND-BASED CRANE AND STAGED ON THE
UPLANDS.

B. REQUIRED FOUNDATION MATERIAL IS DELIVERED TO THE
SITE VIA DELIVERY VESSEL AND/OR UPLAND TRUCKS OR
RAIL.

C. FOUNDATIONS ARE FABRICATED IN SERIAL MANNER,
MOVING FROM WEST TO EAST. FOUNDATION MOVEMENT IS
DONE VIA SELF PROPELLED MODULAR TRANSPORTER
(SPMT) OR SKIDDING SYSTEM.

D. COMPLETED FOUNDATION IS MOVED QUAYSIDE AND
FLOATING ASSET IS BROUGHT TO BERTH (VIA TUG POWER)
AND SECURED IN POSITION.

E. FOUNDATION IS LOADED OUT ONTO FLOATING ASSET VIA
SPMT OR SKID SYSTEM.

F. FLOATING ASSET IS MOVED (VIA TUG) TO DEEP WATER TO
THE SOUTH OF THE TERMINAL.

G. FLOATING ASSET IS BALLASTED DOWN AND SUBMERGED
UNTIL FOUNDATION BECOMES BUOYANT.

H. FLOATING FOUNDATION IS ATTACHED TO TUGS AND TOWED
BACK TO BERTH.

I. WTG COMPONENTS ARE INSTALLED ONTO FOUNDATION VIA
LAND BASED CRANE.

I.A. FOUNDATION PRODUCTION LINE IS INTERRUPTED TO
ACCOMMODATE WTG COMPONENT MOVEMENT AND
INSTALLATION

J. COMPLETE FLOATING TURBINE ASSEMBLY IS CONNECTED
TO OCEAN GOING TUGS AND TOWED TO INSTALLATION SITE.

DRAWING NOTES

1. TERMINAL GRADE AT THE BERTH IS +17.1'± NAVD88 IN
ORDER TO BE ABOVE CURRENT FEMA 100 YEAR FLOOD
ELEVATION AND FUTURE SEA LEVEL RISE.

2. ALL BOUNDARIES AND AREAS ARE APPROXIMATE.
3. BATHYMETRIC INFORMATION SHOWN IN FT MLLW.



A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

I

J

K

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29

28 SPA. @ 15'-0" = 420'-0"

12
 S

PA
. @

 1
1'

-9
" =

 1
41

'-0
"

30" STEEL PIPE PILE
(TYP)

L

M

30 31

12'-9"12'-9"

HUMBOLDT BAY OFFSHORE WIND AND HEAVY LIFT MARINE TERMINAL

Fi
le

: Q
:\S

EA
\2

10
80

7\
20

 C
AD

D
\_

Ac
tiv

e\
_E

xh
ib

its
\2

10
80

7S
K-

05
; P

lo
tte

d:
 7/

26
/2

02
1 

3:
49

 P
M b
y 

M
O

YA
 IG

LE
SI

AS
, C

R
IS

TI
AN; S

av
ed

: 7
/1

9/
20

21
 1

:3
0 

PM b
y 

C
M

O
YA

IG
LE

SI
AS

CONCEPTUAL DRAWING
NOT TO BE USED FOR CONSTRUCTION2021-07-26

N

PHASE 2B
WHARF PILE PLAN
SK-05

20' 0' 20' 40'

SCALE: 1''=20'

A1
SK-06

NOTE:

1. PILE PLAN FOR PHASE 2B BUILD-OUT SHOWN.



6'-0"3'-0"

DENSE GRADE
AGGREGATE BOLLARD

FENDER

150'-0"
WHARF

ABCDEFGHIJKL

DREDGE DEPTH
EL. -38.0' (MLLW)
EL. -38.34' (NAVD88)

1
2.5

1.75
1

ROCK REVETMENT

CUT
SLOPE

CONCRETE
DECK SYSTEM

13 x 30" DIA. STEEL PIPE PILES AT 11'-9" SPA. OC = 141'-0"

M

TOP OF DECK
EL. +14.0'

HUMBOLDT BAY OFFSHORE WIND AND HEAVY LIFT MARINE TERMINAL

Fi
le

: Q
:\S

EA
\2

10
80

7\
20

 C
AD

D
\_

Ac
tiv

e\
_E

xh
ib

its
\2

10
80

7S
K-

06
; P

lo
tte

d:
 7/

26
/2

02
1 

3:
49

 P
M b
y 

M
O

YA
 IG

LE
SI

AS
, C

R
IS

TI
AN; S

av
ed

: 7
/1

9/
20

21
 1

:3
0 

PM b
y 

C
M

O
YA

IG
LE

SI
AS

CONCEPTUAL DRAWING
NOT TO BE USED FOR CONSTRUCTION2021-07-26 WHARF CROSS SECTION

SK-06

8'-0" 0'-0'' 4'-0" 8'-0"

SCALE: 3/16"=1'-0''

NOTE
1. ELEVATIONS ARE REFERENCED TO NAVD88

UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.



VANCE AVENUE

PARK

OCEAN FRONT AVE

HAMMOND STREET

HAMMOND STREET

GEARY ST
REET

MURPHY AVE

DRIFTW
OOD LANE

SAW
MILL ROAD

"NEW TOWN" RESIDENTIALDEVELOPMENT

HAMMOND ST
REET

MURPHY AVE

GEARY STREET

JOHNSON COURT

LUMBER LANE

GEARY STREET

 AVENUE

 S
TR

EE
T

1
2

3

4
5

6
7

8

MILWAUKEE
ACCESS

RI
D

EO
U

T 
RO

A
D

 AVENUE

NORTH BAY VIEW

NORTH  VIEW

CADMAN COURT

CU
TT

EN
 S

TR
EE

T

MURRAY

HA
M

M
O

N
D

RI
D

EO
U

T 
RO

A
D

"OLD TOWN" HISTORIC

WOMENS
CLUB

M
UR

RA
Y 

AV
EN

U
E

COASTAL
CONIFEROUS

FOREST

EMERGENCY VEHICLESTORAGE FACILITY

 BAY

FENWICK AVENUE

CAMPSAMOA

SUNSET24,501 sq ft

24,221 sq ft

28,930 sq ft

240,000 sq ft

18
0,
00
0 

sq
 ft

SAMOAGYM

ESTUARINE TIDAL WETLANDS

MARINE DEEPWATER

SAMOA COAST
TOWNHOMES

15
0'

450'

20
5'

1200'

450'

20,000 sq ft

50,000 sq ft

40,0
00 sq ft

60
,00
0 s

q ft

R E D W O O DM A R INET E R M INA L

EXISTING RMT II DOCK(O&M)

TOWN OF
SAMOA

H U M B O L D T  B A Y

P A C I F I C  O C E A N

VERTICAL
INTEGRATION

AREA

SALT MARSH

ESTUARINE TIDAL WETLAND

COASTAL DUN
E

W
ILLO

W
 TH

ICKET .

W
AX M

YRTLE

SCRUB

ESTUARINE TIDAL WETLANDS

MARINE DEEPWATER

ESTUARINE TIDAL WETLANDSMARINE DEEPWATER

NEW NAVY BASE ROADLP
 D

R
.

YARD /
FABRICATION

AREA

SAMOACOOKHOUSE

RAILROAD &
TIMBER

HERITAGE

MARITIME
MUSEUM

168 ACRES +/-

EXISTING SAMOA FEDERALCHANNEL (38')

EXISTING SAMOA
FEDERAL TURNING

BASIN (38')

LINE OF
EXISTING WARF

(APPROX.
LOCATION)

IN
D

U
STRIAL

LO
TS

(E
) R

M
T 

II 
O

CE
AN

O
U

TF
AL

L
(H

AR
BO

R 
D

IS
TR

IC
T)

(E) WARE-
HOUSE

(E)
HBHRCD

BLDG. "A"

(E) SEA
CHEST

VANCE AVENUE

EXISTING
WASTEWATER
TREATMENT

FACILITY

TOWNSQUARE

SAMOA
BLOCKCOMMERCIAL CENTER

WATER
TANK

SAMOA
BUSINESS

PARK

TUGBOAT ST
REET

COMPASS AVENUE ADM
IRAL LAN

E

PLAY
FIELD

PARK
COURTS

NOT A
PART

EXISTING
OFFICE
BLDG.

(E)INDUSTRICAL
STRUCTURE TO
BE REMOVED

PHASE 3 & 4 DREDGE AREA(INCLUDING SIDE SLOPES) TO -38ft MLLW)

M
A

IN
E

N
T

R
Y

 W
A

Y

(E)INDUSTRICAL
STRUCTURE TO
BE REMOVED

BLADE

M
AN

U
FACTU

RIN
G

BU
ILDIN

G

(APPROX. 300' x 800')

TRANS PACIFIC
BROADBAND
CABLES

REUSE OF DOCUMENTS: This document and the ideas and design incorporated herein, as an instrument of professional service, is the property of
JULIAN BERG DESIGNS and shall not be reused in whole or part for any other project without JULIAN BERG DESIGNS written authorization.

(E
) 

IN
D

U
ST
.

B
LD

G
.

(E)

IN
D

U
STRIAL

BLD
G.

W
IN

D
 A

V
E

N
U

E

PLANNED
SAMOA TRAIL

NETWORK

POTENTIAL
TRAIL NETWORK

VANCE AVENUE

REPRESENTATIVEFLOATING
FOUNDATION

PHASE 3 & 4BERTH AREA

TRANSPORTCORRIDOR

PILE SUPPORTED  WARF
(150' WIDTH)

W/ RIP RAP SLOPE
UNDERNEATH PURPOSE-BUILT

SEMI-SUBMERSIBLE
BARGE

(+/- 350' x 350')

TOW
ER M

ANUFACTURIN
G

BUIL
DIN

G

(A
PP

ROX.
 20
0' 

x 9
00

')

OFFICE
BUILDING

(100' x 200')

UPLANDS  (ELEVATION +/- 17' FT NAVD88)

PH
A

SE
 4

PH
A

SE
 3

FABRICATION & ASSEMBLY

BUILDING
(500' x 100')

MANUFACTURING

BUILDING

(40
0' x 100

')

M
ANUFACTURIN

G

BUIL
DIN

G

(4
00

' x
 15
0')

IMPROVED
EXISTING

ACCESS
ROADS

TOWERS

DELIVERY VESSEL

610' LOA X 80' BEAM

PHASE 2BWHARF

GA
TE

H
O

U
SE

PHASE 3 & 4 WHARF

PHASE 2A DREDGE

(INCLUDING SIDE SLOPES) TO -38ft MLLW)

CRANE

GATE
HOUSE

PROPOSED DETENTIONGALLERIES

GATE
HOUSE

N

W
ETLAND

MITIGATION AREA

NORDIC
AQUAFARMS

M A S T E R  P L A N

WETLAND
MITIGATION

AREA

7.29.21

JUL IA N  BER G  D ES IGNS

ARCATA , CA LIFOR NIA ,   95521
julianber gdesigns.com
TEL: (707) 407-8870

A R C HIT E C T UR E  &  P L A N N I N G

200 '0 ' 500 ' 1,000 '

TURBINES
BLADES

H U M B O L D T  B A Y  O F F S H O R E
W I N D  A N D  H E A V Y  L IF T  M A R I N E  T E R M I N A L

PENINSULA
UNION

ELEMENTARY
SCHOOL

NOTE: THIS MASTER PLAN AND THE
IDEAS HEREIN ARE CONCEPTUAL IN
NATURE AND ARE NOT INTENDED FOR
PROJECT APPROVAL OR CONSTRUCTION.
MORE DEVELOPED PLANS ARE TO BE
BASED ON ACCURATE SURVEY AND BASE
DATA INFORMATION.

VESSEL SIZE
100' L X 30' W

VESSEL SIZE125' L X 36' W

VESSEL SIZE100' L X 30' W

A
N

CH
O

R
S

GATE

H
O

U
SE

B
LA

D
ES

DREDGE
MATERIAL

DEWATERING
AREA



24,501 sq ft

24,221 sq ft

28,930 sq ft

240,000 sq ft

18
0,
00
0 

sq
 ft

20,000 sq ft

50,000 sq ft

40,0
00 sq ft

60
,00
0 s

q ft
PHASE 4

P A C I F I C
O C E A N

REUSE OF DOCUMENTS: This document and the ideas and design incorporated herein, as an instrument of professional service, is the property of
JULIAN BERG DESIGNS and shall not be reused in whole or part for any other project without JULIAN BERG DESIGNS written authorization.

PHASE 1

TOWN OF
SAMOA

H U M B O L D T  B A Y

NEW NAVY BASE ROAD

EXISTING SAMOA FEDERALCHANNEL (38')

EXISTING SAMOA
FEDERAL TURNING

BASIN (38')

VANCE AVENUE
PHASE 2B

ROAD IMPROVEMENTS

UPLANDS (ELEVATION
+/- 17' FT NAVD88)

PHASE 3

PHASE 4

EXISTING SAMOA FEDERAL TURNING BASIN (38')

PHASE 2B

PHASING PLAN  DETAIL

PHASE 3

PHASE 1

RO
AD IM

PRO
VEM

EN
TS

PHASE 2BWHARF

PHASE 3WHARF

PHASE 4WHARF

PHASE 2BWHARF

PHASE 3WHARF

PH
AS

E 
2A

W
H

A
RF

DEMOLITION OF EXISTING

BERTH & REMOVAL OF

EXISTING PILINGS

N

P H A S I N G  P L A N

JUL IA N  BER G  D ES IGNS

ARCATA , CA LIFOR NIA ,   95521
julianber gdesigns.com
TEL: (707) 407-8870

A R C HIT E C T UR E  &  P L A N N I N G

NOTE: THIS MASTER PLAN AND THE
IDEAS HEREIN ARE CONCEPTUAL IN
NATURE AND ARE NOT INTENDED FOR
PROJECT APPROVAL OR CONSTRUCTION.
MORE DEVELOPED PLANS ARE TO BE
BASED ON ACCURATE SURVEY AND BASE
DATA INFORMATION.

7.29.21200 '0 ' 500 ' 1,000 '

PH
AS

E
2A

H U M B O L D T  B A Y  O F F S H O R E
W I N D  A N D  H E A V Y  L IF T  M A R I N E  T E R M I N A L

PH
AS

E
2A



HUMBOLDT BAY OFFSHORE WIND AND 
HEAVY LIFT MARINE TERMINAL 

EUREKA, CALIFORNIA 

Attachment 3 

Cost Estimates 

Submitted by: 

Agenda Item 10a.
Attachment B



Humboldt Bay Offshore Wind and Heavy Lift Marine Terminal - Phase 1 Date : 29-Jul-2021
PIDP Grant Estimate Project No. : 210807

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Subtotal TOTAL
1 Contractor Mobilization/Demobilization $470,000

1.1 Construction Mobilization 1 ls $470,000 $470,000

2 Wharf $9,540,000
2.1 Demolition of Existing Structure in Berth Area 180,000 sf $53 $9,540,000

3 Uplands $903,700
3.1 Access Road 1 ls $903,700 $903,700

Direct Costs Subtotal $10,913,700

4 Construction Indirects $3,387,800
4.1 Supervision (General Conditions) 12 % $1,309,700
4.2 Bonds & Insurance 2 % $244,500
4.3 Corporate Overhead & Profit 15 % $1,833,600

Total Construction Costs $14,301,500

5 Contingency $4,290,600
5.1 Design Contingency 15 % $2,145,300
5.2 Owner Contingency 5 % $715,100
5.3 Construction Contingency 10 % $1,430,200

Total Construction Costs with Contingency $18,592,100

6 Soft Costs $5,947,900
6.1 Planning Studies 1 ls $100,000 $100,000
6.2 Field Investigations 1 ls $1,040,900 $1,040,900
6.3 Engineering Design 1 ls $2,099,400 $2,099,400
6.4 Construction Management/Support 2.5 % $357,600 $357,600
6.5 Permitting CEQA/NEPA 1 ls $1,500,000 $1,500,000
6.6 Environmental Mitigation 1 ls $850,000 $850,000

Total Project Cost $24,540,000

Opinion of Probable Cost 

Page 1 of 6



Humboldt Bay Offshore Wind and Heavy Lift Marine Terminal - Phase 1 Date : 29-Jul-2021
PIDP Grant Estimate Project No. : 210807

Opinion of Probable Cost 

Notes: 1) Costs are for Humboldt Bay Offshore Wind and Heavy Lift Marine Terminal - Phase 1 only.
2) Engineering costs for Phase 1 include 100% design for Phase 1 and design for permitting for Phase 2B.
3) Pricing is based on 2021 US dollars.
4) Estimate based on all dredge material deposited on site, no tipping fees considered or carried.

5)

6) Estimate based on piles driven to grade with no obstructions.
7) Pricing assumes all resources are readily available locally.
8) Price is based on unencumbered contractor access to the site.
9) Price does not include any costs for construction site property lease or acquisition expenses.

10) No extreme weather risk included (force majeure).

11)

12) Cost escalation is not included.
13) Price does not include environmental restrictions.
14) Price does not include any associated costs due to hazardous waste.
15) Price does not include any associated costs due to rock dredging.
16) Price does not include any associated costs due to pile driving/drilling into rock.
17) Price does not include any costs for post construction site remediation or reconstruction
18) Costs for owner's project management or overhead expenses are not included.

19)

When reviewing the above estimated costs it is important to note the following:

-

-

-

The costs have been developed based on historical and current data using in-house sources.

A contingency amount has been included to cover undefined items, due to the level of engineering carried out at this time. The contingency is not 
a reflection of the accuracy of the estimates but covers items of work which will have to be performed, and elements of costs which will be 
incurred, but which are not explicitly detailed or described due to the level of investigation, engineering and estimating completed at the time of 
the estimate.

This construction cost estimate is an 'Opinion of Probable Cost' made by a consultant.  In providing opinions of construction cost, it is recognized 
that neither the client nor the consultant has control over the cost of labor, equipment, materials, or the contractor's means and methods of 
determining constructability, pricing or schedule.  This opinion of construction cost is based on the consultant's reasonable professional 
judgement and experience and does not constitute a warranty, expressed or implied, that contractor's bids or negotiated prices for the work will 
not vary from the client's.

Volumes for uplands site preparation and required berth improvments are based on currently available bathymetric, topographic and geotechnical 
information. Additional geotechnical explorations will be required. Results of this additional exploration program may require price adjustment.

Price is based on currently available geotechnical information. Additional geotechnical explorations will be required. Results of this additional 
exploration program may require price update. Estimated fee for additional geotechincal exploration has been included.

The estimate is a Class 5 Estimate and is considered accurate to -30% to +40%, in accordance with the AACE International Recommended 
Practice No. 18R-97, Cost Estimate Classification System.

Page 2 of 6



Humboldt Bay Offshore Wind and Heavy Lift Marine Terminal - Phase 2A Date : 29-Jul-2021
PIDP Grant Estimate Project No. : 210807

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Subtotal TOTAL Subtotal TOTAL
1 Contractor Mobilization/Demobilization $2,012,000 $1,541,600

1.1 Construction Mobilization 1 ls $1,512,000 $1,512,000 $1,041,600
1.2 Mechanical Dredge Mobilization 1 ls $500,000 $500,000 $500,000

2 Wharf $18,874,800 $9,334,800
2.1 Demolition of Existing Structure in Berth Area 180,000 sf $53 $9,540,000 $0
2.2 Pile-Supported Wharf (Steel Piles & Concrete Superstructure) 12,750 sf $437 $5,571,800 $5,571,800
2.3 Concrete Fill for Wharf Piles (Seismic) 1,400 cy $250 $350,000 $350,000
2.4 Installation of Dense Graded Aggregate Topping Surface 2,900 tons $35 $101,500 $101,500
2.5 Rock Revetment In Wharf Area 27,000 tons $48 $1,296,000 $1,296,000
2.6 Foundation Mooring Structure 4,050 sf $437 $1,769,900 $1,769,900
2.7 Concrete Fill for Foundation Mooring Structure Piles (Seismic) 482 cy $250 $120,600 $120,600
2.8 Catwalk 1 ls $125,000 $125,000 $125,000

3 Earth Fill and Dredge $10,420,700 $10,420,700
3.1 Mechanical Dredge in Berth Area (Place at RMT1&2) 267,500 cy $35 $9,362,500 $9,362,500
3.2 Rip Rap on Dredge Side Slopes (North of Wharf) 10,900 tons $48 $523,200 $523,200
3.3 Stockpile of Soil (at RMT1&2) 267,500 cy $2 $535,000 $535,000

4 Uplands $1,882,500 $978,800
4.1 Grading and Compaction of Uplands Soils 87,200 sf $0.96 $83,800 $83,800
4.2 Installation of Dense Graded Aggregate Topping Surface 13,000 tons $35 $455,000 $455,000
4.3 Site Stormwater system 2 ac $100,000 $200,000 $200,000
4.4 Site Water system 2 ac $20,000 $40,000 $40,000
4.5 Site Electrical system 2 ac $100,000 $200,000 $200,000
4.6 Access Road 1 ls $903,700 $903,700 $0

5 Mooring Dolphins $2,412,000 $2,412,000
5.1 Mooring Dolphins for Vessel 2 ea $1,206,000 $2,412,000 $2,412,000

Direct Costs Subtotal $35,602,000 $24,687,900

6 Construction Indirects $11,051,000 $7,663,300
6.1 Supervision (General Conditions) 12 % $4,272,300 $2,962,600
6.2 Bonds & Insurance 2 % $797,500 $553,100
6.3 Corporate Overhead & Profit 15 % $5,981,200 $4,147,600

Total Construction Costs $46,653,000 $32,351,200

7 Contingency $13,996,000 $9,705,500
7.1 Design Contingency 15 % $6,998,000 $4,852,700
7.2 Owner Contingency 5 % $2,332,700 $1,617,600
7.3 Construction Contingency 10 % $4,665,300 $3,235,200

Total Construction Costs with Contingency $60,649,000 $42,056,700

8 Soft Costs $6,756,700 $809,000
8.1 Planning studies 1 ls $100,000 $100,000 $0
8.2 Field investigations 1 % $1,040,900 $0
8.3 Engineering Design 4.5 % $2,099,400 $0
8.4 Construction Management/Support 2.5 % $1,166,400 $809,000
8.5 Permitting CEQA/NEPA 1 ls $1,500,000 $1,500,000 $0
8.6 Environmental Mitigation 1 ls $850,000 $850,000 $0

Total Project Cost $67,405,700 $42,865,700

Opinion of Probable Cost 

Incremental Cost from
Phase 2A to Phase 2B

Page 3 of 6



Humboldt Bay Offshore Wind and Heavy Lift Marine Terminal - Phase 2A Date : 29-Jul-2021
PIDP Grant Estimate Project No. : 210807

Opinion of Probable Cost 

Notes 1) Costs are for Humboldt Bay Offshore Wind and Heavy Lift Marine Terminal - Phase 2A only.
2) Engineering design fee is independent of Phase 1 Engineering fee.
3) Pricing is based on 2021 US dollars.
4) Estimate based on all dredge material deposited on site, no tipping fees considered or carried.

5)
6) Estimate based on piles driven to grade with no obstructions.
7) Pricing assumes all resources are readily available locally.
8) Price is based on unencumbered contractor access to the site.
9) Price does not include any costs for construction site property lease or acquisition expenses.

10) No extreme weather risk included (force majeure).

11)
12) Cost escalation is not included.
13) Price does not include environmental restrictions.
14) Price does not include any associated costs due to hazardous waste.
15) Price does not include any associated costs due to rock dredging.
16) Price does not include any associated costs due to pile driving/drilling into rock.
17) Price does not include any costs for post construction site remediation or reconstruction
18) Costs for owner's project management or overhead expenses are not included.

19)

When reviewing the above estimated costs it is important to note the following:

-

-

- This construction cost estimate is an 'Opinion of Probable Cost' made by a consultant.  In providing opinions of construction cost, it is recognized 
that neither the client nor the consultant has control over the cost of labor, equipment, materials, or the contractor's means and methods of 
determining constructability, pricing or schedule.  This opinion of construction cost is based on the consultant's reasonable professional judgement 
and experience and does not constitute a warranty, expressed or implied, that contractor's bids or negotiated prices for the work will not vary from 
the client's.

Volumes for uplands site preparation and required berth improvments are based on currently available bathymetric, topographic and geotechnical 
information. Additional geotechnical explorations will be required. Results of this additional exploration program may require price adjustment.

The costs have been developed based on historical and current data using in-house sources.

A contingency amount has been included to cover undefined items, due to the level of engineering carried out at this time. The contingency is not a 
reflection of the accuracy of the estimates but covers items of work which will have to be performed, and elements of costs which will be incurred, 
but which are not explicitly detailed or described due to the level of investigation, engineering and estimating completed at time of estimate.

Price is based on currently available geotechnical information. Additional geotechnical explorations will be required. Results of this additional 
exploration program may require price adjustment. Estimated fee for additional geotechincal exploration has been included.

The estimate is a Class 5 Estimate and is considered accurate to -30% to +40%, in accordance with the AACE International Recommended 
Practice No. 18R-97, Cost Estimate Classification System.

Page 4 of 6



Humboldt Bay Offshore Wind and Heavy Lift Marine Terminal - Phase 2B Date : 29-Jul-2021
PIDP Grant Estimate Project No. : 210807

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Subtotal TOTAL Subtotal TOTAL
1 Contractor Mobilization/Demobilization $3,899,000 $1,887,000

1.1 Construction Mobilization 1 ls $3,399,000 $3,399,000 $1,887,000
1.2 Mechanical Dredge Mobilization 1 ls $500,000 $500,000 $0

2 Wharf $47,191,400 $28,316,600
2.1 Demolition of Existing Structure in Berth Area 180,000 sf $53 $9,540,000 $0
2.2 Demolition of Existing Structure in Semi-Sub Barge Area 100,000 sf $53 $5,300,000 $5,300,000
2.3 Pile-Supported Wharf (Steel Piles & Concrete Superstructure) 66,000 sf $437 $28,842,000 $21,375,300
2.4 Concrete Fill for Wharf Piles (Seismic) 6,800 cy $250 $1,700,000 $1,229,400
2.5 Installation of Dense Graded Aggregate Topping Surface 14,667 cy $35 $513,400 $411,900
2.6 Rock Revetment Beneath Wharf 27,000 tons $48 $1,296,000 $0

3 Earth Fill and Dredge $12,624,400 $2,203,700
3.1 Mechanical Dredge in Berth Area (Place at RMT1&2) 267,500 cy $35 $9,362,500 $0
3.2 Mechanical Dredge in Semi-Sub Barge Area (Place at RMT1&2) 57,100 cy $35 $1,998,500 $1,998,500
3.3 Rip Rap on Dredge Side Slopes (North of Wharf) 10,900 tons $48 $523,200 $0
3.4 Soil Cut from Uplands 18,200 cy $5 $91,000 $91,000
3.5 Stockpile of Soil (at RMT1&2) 324,600 cy $2 $649,200 $114,200

4 Uplands $9,683,500 $7,801,000
4.1 Grading and Compaction of Uplands Soils 784,100 sf $0.96 $752,800 $669,000
4.2 Installation of Dense Graded Aggregate Topping Surface 116,200 cy $35 $4,067,000 $3,612,000
4.3 Site Stormwater system 18 ac $100,000 $1,800,000 $1,600,000
4.4 Site Water system 18 ac $20,000 $360,000 $320,000
4.5 Site Electrical system 18 ac $100,000 $1,800,000 $1,600,000
4.6 Access Road 1 ls $903,700 $903,700 $0

5 Mooring Dolphins $6,030,000 $3,618,000
5.1 Mooring Dolphins for Vessel 2 ea $1,206,000 $2,412,000 $0
5.2 Mooring Dolphins for Semi-Sub Barge 3 ea $1,206,000 $3,618,000 $3,618,000

Direct Costs Subtotal $79,428,300 $43,826,300

6 Construction Indirects $24,654,600 $13,603,600
6.1 Supervision (General Conditions) 12 % $9,531,400 $5,259,100
6.2 Bonds & Insurance 2 % $1,779,200 $981,700
6.3 Corporate Overhead & Profit 15 % $13,344,000 $7,362,800

Total Construction Costs $104,082,900 $57,429,900

7 Contingency $31,225,000 $17,229,000
7.1 Design Contingency 15 % $15,612,500 $8,614,500
7.2 Owner Contingency 5 % $5,204,200 $2,871,500
7.3 Construction Contingency 10 % $10,408,300 $5,743,000

Total Construction Costs with Contingency $135,307,900 $74,658,900

8 Soft Costs $9,926,800 $3,170,100
8.1 Planning studies 1 ls $100,000 $100,000 $0
8.2 Field investigations 1 % $1,040,900 $0
8.3 Engineering Design 4.5 % $4,683,800 $2,584,400
8.4 Construction Management/Support 2.5 % $2,602,100 $1,435,700
8.5 Permitting CEQA/NEPA 1 ls $1,500,000 $1,500,000 $0
8.6 Environmental Mitigation 1 ls $850,000 $850,000 $0

Total Project Cost $145,234,700 $77,829,000

Opinion of Probable Cost 

Incremental Cost from
Phase 2A to Phase 2B

Page 5 of 6



Humboldt Bay Offshore Wind and Heavy Lift Marine Terminal - Phase 2B Date : 29-Jul-2021
PIDP Grant Estimate Project No. : 210807

Opinion of Probable Cost 

Notes: 1) Costs are for Humboldt Bay Offshore Wind and Heavy Lift Marine Terminal - Phase 2B only.
2) Pricing is based on 2021 US dollars.
3) Estimate based on all dredge material deposited on site, no tipping fees considered or carried.
4)

5) Estimate based on piles driven to grade with no obstructions.
6) Pricing assumes all resources are readily available locally.
7) Price is based on unencumbered contractor access to the site.
8) Price does not include any costs for construction site property lease or acquisition expenses.
9) No extreme weather risk included (force majeure).

10)

11) Cost escalation is not included.
12) Price does not include environmental restrictions.
13) Price does not include any associated costs due to hazardous waste.
14) Price does not include any associated costs due to rock dredging.
15) Price does not include any associated costs due to pile driving/drilling into rock.
16) Price does not include any costs for post construction site remediation or reconstruction
17) Costs for owner's project management or overhead expenses are not included.
18)

When reviewing the above estimated costs it is important to note the following:

-

-

- This construction cost estimate is an 'Opinion of Probable Cost' made by a consultant.  In providing opinions of construction cost, it is recognized 
that neither the client nor the consultant has control over the cost of labor, equipment, materials, or the contractor's means and methods of 
determining constructability, pricing or schedule.  This opinion of construction cost is based on the consultant's reasonable professional 
judgement and experience and does not constitute a warranty, expressed or implied, that contractor's bids or negotiated prices for the work will 
not vary from the client's.

p p p q p y y p g p
geotechnical information. Additional geotechnical explorations will be required. Results of this additional exploration program may require price 
adjustment.

The costs have been developed based on historical and current data using in-house sources.

A contingency amount has been included to cover undefined items, due to the level of engineering carried out at this time. The contingency is not 
a reflection of the accuracy of the estimates but covers items of work which will have to be performed, and elements of costs which will be 
incurred, but which are not explicitly detailed or described due to the level of investigation, engineering and estimating completed at the time of 
the estimate.

Price is based on currently available geotechnical information. Additional geotechnical explorations will be required. Results of this additional 
exploration program may require price update. Estimated fee for additional geotechincal exploration has been included.

The estimate is a Class 5 Estimate and is considered accurate to -30% to +40%, in accordance with the AACE International Recommended 
Practice No. 18R-97, Cost Estimate Classification System.

Page 6 of 6



Agenda Item 10a.
Attachment C







COMMISSIONERS 
1st Division 
  Larry Doss 
2nd Division 
  Greg Dale 
3rd Division 
  Stephen Kullmann 
4th Division 
  Richard Marks 
5th Division 
  Patrick Higgins 

 

Page 1 of 1 

Humboldt Bay  
Harbor, Recreation and Conservation District 

(707) 443-0801
P.O. Box 1030

Eureka, California 95502-1030 
 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
HARBOR DISTRICT MEETING 

October 14, 2021 

TO: Honorable Board President and Harbor District Board Members 

FROM:  Larry Oetker, Executive Director  

DATE:  October 8, 2021 

TITLE:  Accept Resignation for Filing From 1st District Commissioner Larry Doss and Provide 
Direction to Staff on Filling the Board Vacancy  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Accept the Resignation of Commissioner Doss for filing and provide 
direction to staff as appropriate. 

SUMMARY:  On October 1, 2021 District staff received a letter of resignation from 1st District 
Commissioner Larry Doss due to a change of residency out of District one. Staff requests 
direction from the Board on how to fill the vacancy. 

DISCUSSION:   The District’s legal Counsel will provide the Board with its options at the Board 
meeting. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

A. October 1, 2021 letter of Resignation from Commissioner Doss

Agenda Item 11a.



Agenda Item 11a.
Attachment A



COMMISSIONERS 
1st Division 
  Larry Doss 
2nd Division 
  Greg Dale 
3rd Division 
  Stephen Kullmann 
4th Division 
  Richard Marks 
5th Division 
  Patrick Higgins 

 

Page 1 of 3 

Humboldt Bay  
Harbor, Recreation and Conservation District 

(707) 443-0801
P.O. Box 1030

Eureka, California 95502-1030 
 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
HARBOR DISTRICT MEETING 

October 14, 2021 

TO:  Honorable Board President and Harbor District Board Members 

FROM:  Larry Oetker, Executive Director  

DATE:  October 8, 2021 

TITLE:  Review the progress on Removing the Hazardous Waste at RMT II and the County 
Department of Health & Human Services Notification of Filing of an Administrative 
Enforcement Order Regarding Hazardous Material Storage and Reporting and Provide 
Direction as may be appropriate  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Receive a report from Staff and provide direction as may be 
appropriate. 

SUMMARY:  On September 8, 2021, the District received a Notification of Filing of an 
Administrative Enforcement Order Regarding Hazardous Material Storage and Reporting the 
former pulp mill property (RMT II) on the Samoa Peninsula. The order stated that the “As of the 
Date of this correspondence, the Humboldt Bay Harbor District has not taken the required 
corrective actions to resolve the violations in the June 1, 2021 Notice of Violations". The Harbor 
District takes these matter very seriously, and continues to work to remove the hazardous 
material and to dispose them in certified facilities.   

DISCUSSION:   On May 27, 2021, the District received a Notice of Violation and Schedule for 
Compliance where the Harbor District was given until June 28, 2021 to: 

• update the CERS
• Update Facility Contact Information including valid email
• Hazardous Waste Inventory
• Emergency Response and Training Plans
• Site map that complies with HSC 25505(a)(2)
• Above Ground Petroleum Storage Act reporting sections of the CERS submittal if

applicable.

On June 1, 2021, four days after the May 27th initial Notice of Violation and with 27 days 
remaining within the compliance period, the Harbor District was given a “Second Notice of 

Agenda Item 11b.



Page 2 of 3 

Violation and Schedule for Compliance”. In this Second Notice the Harbor District was given 
until July 1, 2021 to correct the following violations: 

1. Submit a completed HMBP via the CERS
2. Dispose of all hazardous material using a licensed.

In compliance with the May 27 and June 1, 2021 Notices, the Harbor District Staff was in regular 
communication with Department of Environmental Health (DEH) staff and took the following 
actions to come into compliance:   

• May 26, 2021, the Harbor District received a quote from Clean Earth to remove the
Hazardous Material.

• June 10, 2021, the Harbor District Board received an open session public disclosure
report on the DEH violation and approved a contract with Clean Earth in the amount of
$18,064.20 to remove approximately 810 gallons and 7,250 pounds of regulated waste
from the site.

• July 15, 2021, Green Earth removed 75 items with 56 items remaining and pending
authorization from hazardous waste disposal site.

• July 15, 2021, Harbor District Board and public received and updated open session
report of our efforts to remove the hazardous materials and come into compliance.

• July 29, 2021, Harbor District received a quote and approved a request from Clean Earth
for an additional $1,144 to remove the remaining waste.  Note, the initial shipment
occurred on 07/15/2021 and the database was updated in the following couple of
business days. Those materials which remain on site have been classed, waste profiles
created and await shipment based on the receiving site availability or the availability of
the incinerator. Rick Luna (Clean Earth).

• August 12, 2021, phone and email correspondence to DEH regrading Harbor District
efforts to come into compliance.

• August 12, 2021, Board and public received and updated open session report of our
efforts to remove the hazardous materials and come into compliance.

• September 9th Board and public received and updated open session report of our efforts
to remove the hazardous materials and come into compliance.

• September 16, 2021 Letter to DEH regrading Harbor District efforts to come into
compliance.

• September 29, 2021 in person meeting with DEH regarding settlement of enforcement
order.

• October 7, 2021, executed contract amendment with Clean Earth and scheduled pick-up
for disposal of remaining Hazardous materials.

It is important to note that on August 10, 2021, the USEPA issued a Memorandum recognizing 
that due to Covid 19 there is a backlog  from June 2021 of containerized hazardous waste and 
incinerator facilities and issued new guidance to address this backlog (attached). 

The record shows that within 30 days of the April 29, 2021 DEH site inspection, the Harbor 
District had received a quote to remove the material. Fourteen days later, at the next Board 
meeting, the District Board approved the contract (Note the contract amount is required 
Harbor District Board approval). Thirty-five days later the contractor removed all material which 



Page 3 of 3 

would be accepted by the hazardous waste disposal facility and the Harbor District has been in 
regular communication with both DEH and our contractor regarding the removal and proper 
disposal of the remaining items. The removal of hazardous waste must be completed in strict 
compliance with the rules and regulations. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
A. Response to September 29, 2021 in Person Meeting Regarding Notice of Filing an 

Administrative Enforcement Order Dated September 8, 2021 (UPA#21-002).
B. September 16, 2021 District Response to DEH
C. September 8, 2021 DEH Notice of Filing of an Administrative Enforcement Order with 

Attachments



COMMISSIONERS 
1st  Division 
  Larry Doss 
2nd Division 
  Greg Dale 
3rd Division 
  Stephen Kullmann 
4th Division 
  Richard Marks 
5th Division 
  Patrick Higgins 

 
Humboldt Bay  

Harbor, Recreation and Conservation District 
(707)443-0801
P.O. Box 1030

Eureka, California 95502-1030 
 

 
 
 
 
 

TO: Melissa Martel, Director, Humboldt County Environmental Health Division 
Maje Hoyos, Supervising Environmental Health Specialist 
Mathew Swoveland, Senior Hazardous Materials Specialist 

FROM: Larry Oetker, Executive Director 

DATE: September 30, 2021 

SUBJECT: Response to September 29, 2021 in Person Meeting Regarding Notice of Filing an 
Administrative Enforcement Order Dated September 8, 2021 (UPA#21-002). 

The Harbor District appreciates the Department of Health and Human Services (DEH) flexibility in 
resolving this issue.  As you know, the Harbor District acquired the former pulp mill in late 2014 because 
the site was largely abandoned, was a threat to Humboldt Bay, groundwater, and human health as the 
site contained approximately 30 bulk storage tanks in various states of decay containing approximately 4 
million gallons of pulping liquor - a highly corrosive liquid (> 13 pH) and approximately 10,000 gallons of 
sulfuric and hydrochloric acids. In addition, approximately 10,000 gallons of fuel and turpentines, as well 
as over 3,000 tons of corrosive sludges were on-site. The site also contained a wide variety of hazardous 
materials that were scattered throughout the property and contained contaminated soil and 
groundwater. 

The Harbor District acquired the property because it was determined to be an imminent threat to 
Humboldt Bay and no private or government agency would take over the responsibility for cleaning up 
this blighted and contaminated piece of property.  Once the Harbor District took ownership, the District 
developed a strong partnership with the USEPA, State Water Quality Control Board, and other partners 
to systematically clean up the site.  The USEPA and Harbor District have both invested millions of dollars 
in our joint clean-up efforts.  One well documented example is the $1.25 million clean-up loan the 
Harbor District took from Coast Seafoods, and another is the $4.5 million new market tax credit loan.  
The Harbor District has consistently invested thousands of dollars annually towards cleanup. It is 
estimated that the USEPA has invested somewhere between $10 to $18 million on this site.  Most 
recently in 2021, the Harbor District removed lead contaminated soil to Kettleman Hills Landfill; and is 
pending approval from the State Water Board to remove several hundred thousand gallons of liquids 
that have been determined through testing to be non-hazardous; and is pending authorization from an 
hazardous waste disposal facility to properly dispose of the last of the approximately 810 gallons and 
7,250 pounds of regulated waste that remain onsite from the former pulp mill. 

Since the acquisition, the Harbor District and our regulatory partners hat  met every two months to go 
over the known hazardous materials, groundwater, soil, and soil gas sampling and to discuss and to 
strategize on how to remediate priority cleanup areas and to find solutions to cleaning up this problem 

Agenda Item 11b. 
Attachment A



⚫ Page 2 September 30, 2021 

site.  Early in the cleanup process it was quickly determined that this site was not going to be a quick and 
easy project.  Time, patience, cooperation, and consistent and strategic remediation would be required.  
It has been well reported in the local media that some in our community believe the Harbor District 
should never have taken on this project because the Harbor District did not have the financial means to 
take on this colossal project.  However, right or wrong, the Harbor District Board determined that the 
threat to Humboldt Bay and human health required that District to take on this project and we have 
been steadfast in our determination to clean up and adaptively reuse the property. 

The partnerships, time, patience, cooperation, and consistent and strategic remediation strategy has 
worked, and we are on the verge of cleaning up the entire site and adaptively reusing the property.  
Most of the dilapidated structures have been removed, and all of the remaining smokestack, buildings, 
and miscellaneous infrastructure from the former pulp mill are planned to be removed once the Nordic 
Aquafarms project is approved in early 2022. The contaminated soils have largely been remediated as 
groundwater remediation is showing positive signs of progress, and the State Water Board is now in the 
process of allowing the District to remove some of the monitoring wells.  The hazardous waste, which is 
the source of this specific enforcement action, has been stored inside the warehouse, on pallets on a 
concrete floor.  Where practical, all the material has been stored in new 55-gallon drums properly 
labeled as hazardous material.  The Samoa Fire District regularly tours our facility and is aware of what is 
onsite and where it is stored.  Most of the hazardous material was removed on July 15, 2021, and all of 
the remaining material from the former pulp mill is under contract for removal pending clearance from 
the hazardous materials receiving site.  

The September 8th DEH Order attached the May 27, 2021 Notice of Violation and Schedule for 
Compliance where the Harbor District was given until June 28, 2021 to: 

• update the CERS

• Update Facility Contact Information including valid email

• Hazardous Waste Inventory

• Emergency Response and Training Plans

• Site map that complies with HSC 25505(a)(2)

• Above Ground Petroleum Storage Act reporting sections of the CERS submittal if applicable.

On June 1, 2021, four days after the May 27th initial Notice of Violation and with 27 days remaining 
within the compliance period, the Harbor District was given a “Second Notice of Violation and Schedule 
for Compliance”.  In this Second Notice the Harbor District was given until July 1, 2021 to correct the 
following violations: 

1. Submit a completed HMBP via the CERS
2. Dispose of all hazardous material using a licensed.

In compliance with the May 27 and June 1, 2021 Notices, the Harbor District Staff was in regular 
communication with DEH staff and took the following actions to come into compliance:   

• May 26, 2021, the Harbor District received a quote from Clean Earth to remove the Hazardous
Material.

• June 10, 2021, the Harbor District Board received an open session public disclosure report on
the DEH violation and approved a contract with Clean Earth in the amount of $18,064.20 to
remove approximately 810 gallons and 7,250 pounds of regulated waste from the site.

• July 15, 2021, Green Earth removed 75 items with 56 items remaining and pending
authorization from hazardous waste disposal site.



⚫ Page 3 September 30, 2021 

• July 15, 2021, Harbor District Board and public received and updated open session report of our
efforts to remove the hazardous materials and come into compliance.

• July 29, 2021, Harbor District received a quote and approved a request from Clean Earth for an
additional $1,144 to remove the remaining waste.  Note, the initial shipment occurred on
07/15/2021 and the database was updated in the following couple of business days. Those
materials which remain on site have been classed, waste profiles created and await shipment
based on the receiving site availability or the availability of the incinerator. Rick Luna (Clean
Earth).

• August 12, 2021, phone and email correspondence to DEH regrading Harbor District efforts to
come into compliance.

• August 12, 2021, Board and public received and updated open session report of our efforts to
remove the hazardous materials and come into compliance.

• September 9th Board and public received and updated open session report of our efforts to
remove the hazardous materials and come into compliance.

• September 16, 2021 Letter to DEH regrading Harbor District efforts to come into compliance.

• September 29, 2021 in person meeting with DEH regarding settlement of enforcement order.

As this settlement process moves forward, we will review our records for a more detailed account of the 
actions taken by the Harbor District to come into compliance and find ways to improve. 

The record shows that within 30 days of the April 29, 2021 DEH site inspection, the Harbor District had 
received a quote to remove the material. Fourteen days later, at the next Board meeting, the District 
Board approved the contract (Note the contract amount is required Harbor District Board approval).  
Thirty-five days later the contractor removed all material which would be accepted by the hazardous 
waste disposal facility and the Harbor District has been in regular communication with both DEH and our 
contractor regarding the removal and proper disposal of the remaining items.  

We are not questioning your authority, but as this process moves forward, we would like to have a 
better understanding of why DEH accelerated the enforcement schedule with the June 1, 2021 second 
notice.  Had the DEH waited until the completion of the June 28th compliance schedule as outlined in the 
May 27th Notice of Violation, before they issued the second notice, the Harbor District would have had 
all the hazardous material which would be accepted removed from the property.  HSC Section 
25404.1.1(a)(5)(b) specifies that: 

(b) In establishing a penalty amount and ordering that the violation be corrected
pursuant to this section, the UPA shall take into consideration the nature,
circumstances, extent, and gravity of the violation, the violator’s past and present
efforts to prevent, abate, or clean up conditions posing a threat to the public health or
safety or the environment, the violator’s ability to pay the penalty, and the deterrent
effect that the imposition of the penalty would have on both the violator and the
regulated community.

As outline above, the Harbor District takes this matter seriously and has and continues to take corrective 
actions to come into and remain in compliance.   We recognize the violation and want to pursue a 
settlement to resolve the issue.  We believe that our past and current efforts to prevent, abate and 
clean up the conditions, as well as the fact that the public health, safety, and the environment are better 
served by not issuing a monetary penalty and instead by allowing the Harbor District to invest scarce 



⚫ Page 4 September 30, 2021 

funds into continuing with the successful strategy of cleaning up this site; allowing time; and not 
accelerating the enforcement schedule. 

As we discussed in our September 29th meeting, the Harbor District proposes that the public is better 
served by allowing the Harbor District credit for 100% of all administrative fines imposed by offsetting 
the costs to abate the remaining hazardous waste and other contamination that remain on the site, as 
well as, the staff training on hazardous waste management, hazwoper certifications, and CERS online 
reporting data entry.   The Harbor District is a governmental agency, and any settlement agreement will 
need to be reviewed and approved by my Board and the public.  We plan to put a closed session item 
under potential litigation (as standard practice)  and open session item on the Boards October 14th 
regular meeting to inform the public and discuss this item.  Upon receipt of the proposed written 
settlement agreement as proposed by DEH, the Harbor District will promptly respond. 



Agenda Item 11b. 
Attachment B









































Agenda Item 11b. 
Attachment C































COMMISSIONERS 
1st Division 
  Larry Doss 
2nd Division 
  Greg Dale 
3rd Division 
  Stephen Kullmann 
4th Division 
  Richard Marks 
5th Division 
  Patrick Higgins 

 

Page 1 of 2 

Humboldt Bay  
Harbor, Recreation and Conservation District 

(707) 443-0801
P.O. Box 1030

Eureka, California 95502-1030 
 

 
 
 

STAFF REPORT – HARBOR DISTRICT MEETING 
October 14, 2021 

TO: Honorable Board President and Harbor District Board Members 

FROM: Larry Oetker, Executive Director 

DATE: October 7, 2021 

TITLE: Consider Adopting Resolution 2021-13, A Resolution to Authorize the Execution of a 
Grant Agreement and Accept Funds From the California Natural Resources Agency 
Department of Parks and Recreation Division of Boating and Waterways for the 
Surrendered and Abandoned Vessel Exchange Program 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the Board: Adopt Resolution 2021-13. 

SUMMARY:  There are currently thirty abandoned and/or derelict vessels located     at District boat 
storage facilities eligible under the SAVE Grant.  Eleven of those vessels are eligible for funding 
under this program. The Harbor District has partnered with the City of Eureka and Humboldt 
County Sheriff's Office for many years to remove abandoned and surrendered vessels from local 
waterways to avoid environmental and navigational hazards as well as physical damage to marine 
facilities. The District has been awarded $52,000 in SAVE grant funds pending adoption of 
Resolution 2021-13. 

DISCUSSION:  The California Natural Resources Agency Department of Parks and Recreation Division 
of Boating and Waterways (DBW) is authorized under Section 525 of the State of California Harbors 
and Navigation code to appropriate funds for the Abandoned Watercraft Abatement Fund and the 
Vessel Turn-In Program.  The DBW distributes monies from these two funds as the Surrendered and 
Abandoned Vessel Exchange (SAVE) Program to local public agencies that have jurisdiction over 
navigable waterways in California for the express purpose of removal and disposal of abandoned, 
wrecked, or dismantled vessels, or surrendered vessels or parts thereof, which pose or have the 
potential to pose a substantial hazard to navigation or likelihood of causing environmental 
degradation.  Only recreational vessels and marine debris are eligible for removal. 

There are currently eleven qualified vessels stored at the Fields Landing Boat Yard. In April 2021, the 
District applied for the SAVE grant to appropriately dispose of each of these vessels.  In September, 
the DBW notified the District that it had been awarded a grant in the amount of $52,000.  The funds 
from the SAVE grant will first be used to appropriately dispose of any abandoned vessels to which 

Agenda Item 11c.



Page 2 of 2 

the Harbor District currently holds title.  If grant funds remain, the District will use the funds to 
dispose of any vessels voluntarily surrendered to the District by the owners.  The District is required 
to provide a 10% matching cash or in-kind contribution, equivalent to $5,200.00 

ATTACHMENTS: 

A. Resolution 2021-13



HUMBOLDT BAY HARBOR, RECREATION AND 
CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-13 

A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTION OF A GRANT AGREEMENT AND ACCEPT 
FUNDS FROM THE CALIFORNIA NATURAL RESOURCES AGENCY DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND 

RECREATION DIVISION OF BOATING AND WATERWAYS FOR THE SURRENDERED AND 
ABANDONED VESSEL EXCHANGE PROGRAM 

WHEREAS, the State of California Harbors and Navigation Code section 525 authorizes the 
California Natural Resources Agency Department of Parks and Recreation Division of Boating and 
Waterways ("DBW") to appropriate funds for the Abandoned Watercraft Abatement Fund and the 
Vessel Turn-In Program. The Abandoned Watercraft Abatement Fund and the Vessel Turn-In 
Program have been combined into the Surrendered and Abandoned Vessel Exchange ("SAVE") 
Grant Program; 

WHEREAS, the Humboldt Bay Harbor, Recreation and Conservation District ("District") 
owns and operates the Woodley Island Marina, Fields Landing Boat Yard, Redwood Marine 
Terminals I and II, and King Salmon Fisherman's Channel, and is a qualified local government 
agency with jurisdiction over navigable waters in California eligible for grant funding under the 
SAVE Program; 

WHEREAS, there are currently thirty (30) abandoned and/or derelict vessels located at District 
boat storage facilities eligible under the SAVE Grant; 

WHEREAS, in April 2021 the District submitted an application to the SAVE Program for 
funding to appropriately dispose of up to eleven (11) of those vessels; 

WHEREAS, the DBW has awarded a SAVE grant to the District in the amount of 
$52,000 for the removal and appropriate disposal of surrendered and abandoned vessels; and 

WHEREAS, the procedures established by the DBW require a resolution from the 
District authorizing the execution of the SAVE Grant Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of the Humboldt 
Bay Harbor, Recreation and Conservation District hereby: 

1. Accepts the award of a SAVE Program Grant in the amount of $52,000 from the
California Natural Resources Agency Department of Parks and Recreation Division
of Boating and Waterways.

2. Certifies that the District has reviewed, understands, and agrees to the
. provisions contained in the grant agreement.

3. Delegates the authority to the Executive Director, Larry Oetker or his designee,
to execute the grant agreement and any subsequent amendments with the State
of California for the purposes of this grant, and to execute all other documents
needed in connection with the SAVE Grant

Agenda Item 11c.
Attachment A



Program; and 
4. Authorizes a 10% cash or in-kind contribution of District Funds in the amount of 

$5,200. 
 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of the Humboldt Bay Harbor, Recreation 
and Conservation District at a duly called meeting held on the 14th day of October 2021, by the 
following polled vote: 

AYES:   

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

   
 

ATTEST: 
             
     
       
      ______________________________ 
      STEPHEN KULLMANN, President 
      Board of Commissioners 
 
 
     __________________________ 
     PATRICK HIGGINS, Secretary 
     Board of Commissioners 



CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY 
 
 
 

The undersigned, duly qualified and acting Secretary of the HUMBOLDT BAY HARBOR, RECREATION 
AND CONSERVATION DISTRICT, does hereby certify that the attached Resolution is a true and 
correct copy of RESOLUTION NO. 2021-13 entitled, 

 
A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTION OF A GRANT AGREEMENT AND ACCEPT 

FUNDS FROM THE CALIFORNIA NATURAL RESOURCES AGENCY 
· DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION DIVISION OF BOATING AND WATERWAYS FOR 

THE SURRENDERED AND ABANDONED VESSEL EXCHANGE 
PROGRAM 

 
as regularly adopted at a legally convened meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the HUMBOLDT 
BAY HARBOR, RECREATION AND CONSERVATION DISTRICT, duly held on the 14th day of October 
2021; and further, that such Resolution has been fully recorded in the Journal of Proceedings in my 
office and is in full force and effect. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this 14th day of October 2021. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
PATRICK HIGGINS, Secretary 
Board of Commissioners 



COMMISSIONERS 
1st Division 
  Larry Doss 
2nd Division 
  Greg Dale 
3rd Division 
  Stephen Kullmann 
4th Division 
  Richard Marks 
5th Division 
  Patrick Higgins 

 
Humboldt Bay  

Harbor, Recreation and Conservation District 
(707) 443-0801
P.O. Box 1030

Eureka, California 95502-1030 
 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
HARBOR DISTRICT MEETING 

October 14, 2021 

TO:  Honorable Board President and Harbor District Board Members 

FROM:  Larry Oetker, Executive Director  

DATE:  October 8, 2021 

TITLE: Consider Adopting Resolution No. 2021-16 A Resolution of the Board of Commissioners 
of the Humboldt Bay Harbor, Recreation, and Conservation District Making Findings 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953, as Amended by Assembly Bill 361, and 
Authorize the Continued Use of Virtual Meetings.   

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt Resolution No. 2021-16. 

SUMMARY:   As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Governor issued Executive Order Nos. N-
08-21, N-25-20 and N-29-20, which suspended certain provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act to allow 
legislative bodies to conduct public meetings without strict compliance with the teleconferencing 
provisions of the Brown Act. Assembly Bill 361, which was signed into law in September of 2021, 
amended Government Code section 54953, to provide relief from the teleconferencing provisions of 
the Brown Act under certain circumstances provided the legislative body makes certain findings. 

DISCUSSION:   As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Humboldt County Health Officer has 
imposed and has recommended measures to promote social distancing as more particularly set 
forth in his August 6, 2021, Order, among other prior orders and guidance. Based on these 
recommendations, Staff recommends that the Board continue to conduct virtual meetings as 
authorized by AB 361. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

A  Resolution 2021-16 

Agenda Item 11d.



HUMBOLDT BAY HARBOR, RECREATION, 
AND CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

__________________________________________________________________ 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-16 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE HUMBOLDT BAY HARBOR, 
RECREATION, AND CONSERVATION DISTRICT MAKING FINDINGS PURSUANT TO 

GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54953, AS AMENDED BY ASSEMBLY BILL 361, AND 
AUTHORIZING THE CONTINUED USE OF VIRTUAL MEETINGS  

WHEREAS, as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Governor issued Executive Order 
Nos. N-08-21, N-25-20 and N-29-20, which suspended certain provisions of the Ralph M. Brown 
Act to allow legislative bodies to conduct public meetings without strict compliance with the 
teleconferencing provisions of the Brown Act; 

WHEREAS, Assembly Bill 361, which was signed into law in September of 2021, amended 
Government Code section 54953, to provide relief from the teleconferencing provisions of the 
Brown Act under certain circumstances provided the legislative body makes certain findings;  

WHEREAS, as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Governor proclaimed a state of 
emergency on March 4, 2020, in accordance with the section 8625 of the California Emergency 
Services Act, and the state of emergency remains in effect; 

WHEREAS, as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Humboldt County Health Officer 
has imposed and has recommended measures to promote social distancing as more particularly 
set forth in his August 6, 2021, Order, among other prior orders and guidance;  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE HUMBOLDT BAY 
HARBOR, RECREATION, AND CONSERVATION DISTRICT DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. That the Board has reconsidered the circumstances of the previously declared and 
existing state of emergency arising from the COVID-19 pandemic; 

SECTION 2. That the state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the members 
of the Board to meet safely in person, and further that local officials continue to impose or 
recommend measures to promote social distancing; 

SECTION 3. That the Board may continue to conduct public meetings in accordance with 
Government Code section 54953(e);  

SECTION 4. That the Board will reconsider the above findings within 30-days of this Resolution. 

Agenda Item 11d.
Attachment A



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Humboldt Bay Harbor, Recreation and Conservation District 
Board of Commissioners at a duly called meeting held on the 14th day of October 2021 by the 
following polled vote: 

AYES:  

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________ 
Stephen Kullmann, President 
Board of Commissioners 

__________________________________ 
Patrick Higgins, Secretary 
Board of Commissioners   



CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY 

The undersigned, duly qualified and acting Secretary of the HUMBOLDT BAY HARBOR, RECREATION AND 
CONSERVATION DISTRICT, does hereby certify that the attached Resolution is a true and correct copy 
of RESOLUTION NO. 2021-16 entitled, 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE HUMBOLDT BAY HARBOR, 
RECREATION, AND CONSERVATION DISTRICT MAKING FINDINGS PURSUANT TO 

GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54953, AS AMENDED BY ASSEMBLY BILL 361, AND 
AUTHORIZING THE CONTINUED USE OF VIRTUAL MEETINGS  

as regularly adopted at a legally convened meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the HUMBOLDT 
BAY HARBOR, RECREATION AND CONSERVATION DISTRICT, duly held on the 14th day of October 2021; 
and further, that such Resolution has been fully recorded in the Journal of Proceedings in my office, 
and is in full force and effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this 14th day of October 2021. 

__________________________________ 
Patrick Higgins, Secretary 
Board of Commissioners   


	10a. Multipurpose Dock RFQ SR WITH ATTACH.pdf
	Att A_ Design Drawings.pdf
	Att 5_Concept Design Drawings
	210807SK-01-Layout1
	210807SK-02-Layout1
	210807SK-03-Layout1
	210807SK-04-Layout1
	210807SK-05-Layout1
	210807SK-06-Layout1

	HUMBOLDT BAY TERMINAL Master Plan 7.29.21
	HUMBOLDT BAY TERMINAL Phasing Plan 7.29.21


	11d. Vitural Meeting Resolution 2021-16 SR WITH ATTACH.pdf
	Resolution 2021-13 AB 361.pdf
	RESOLUTION NO. 2021-16


	Agenda 10-14-2021.pdf
	DATE: October 14, 2021




